
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Email from Wendy Hassen, February 18, 2015 to: 
 
Paul Conway; Michael Hokanson; Barry Marshall; Dolores Herman (daherman@shaw.ca); Jeff Jessamine; 
Angela Boyes; Chuck Smith; Stan Galbraith; Joanne Munro; Truus Souman 
 
Hi Don! 
 
Thanks for your letter sharing recent advice regarding possible MOU’s between AAMS and ADRIA . 
 
I appreciate and respect the limitations outlined regarding any potential associations and your goal  to 
preserve AAMS Charitable status.  
 
We also look forward to continue our collegial relationships with AAMS and to explore mutually 
beneficial and appropriate ways to work together in the future. 
 
Take care! 
 
Wendy  
 


( Truus please post this correspondence up on Board Suite )  
 


Life is not about how fast you run or how high you 
climb, but how well you bounce. 


Vivian Komori 


This communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, 
and may contain confidential, personal and or privileged information.  Please contact me immediately if you are not the intended recipient of 
this communication, and do not copy, distribute, or take action replying on it.  Any communication received in error, or subsequent reply, should 
be deleted or destroyed. 
 
From: Rita Muwanga [mailto:RMuwanga@goodfellowqc.com] On Behalf Of W. Donald Goodfellow 
Sent: February-18-15 11:49 AM 


To: Wendy Hassen 
Subject: OUR FILE 15890-373 Memorandum of Understanding 


 
Please find attached correspondence from W. Donald Goodfellow, Q.C. Should you have any difficulties 
opening the attachment, please let me know. 
 
Regards, 
 
Rita Muwanga 
Front Desk Coordinator 
#715, 999 – 8th Street SW 
Calgary, Alberta T2R 1J5 
Telephone: (403) 228-7102  
Fax: (403) 228-7199 
Email: RMuwanga@goodfellowqc.com 
 



mailto:RMuwanga@goodfellowqc.com

mailto:RMuwanga@goodfellowqc.com





 
 







 









































Executive Director’s Report – April 2015 
 


It’s been busy, but 2015 is off to a great start.  There have certainly been unexpected problems and 


roadblocks, but the ADRIA team has been performing exceptionally well and making progress on several 


important initiatives.   


 
Potential elements of this report that have been adequately addressed elsewhere in the Board’s agenda are, for the most part, 


not included herein.  Dashboard display elements continue be incorporated slowly into Board presentation materials, and will 


progressively linked to ADRIA’s strategic plan and success indications.  Dashboard metrics are intended to provide Board 


members with clear, succinct and meaningful data, charts and indicators upon which they may base their decisions, establish 


new initiatives, and provide strategic direction.  It is important that all Board members provide feedback and suggestions 


regarding the materials and metrics presented – what’s useful, what’s not, and what might be needed in the future. 


 


Designations  
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 March was Designation month and we had 25 designation applications in total. 


o Q.Arb – 3 applicants 


o C.Med – 4 applicants 


o Q.Med – 18 applicants 


o The changes to the Q.Med application form, implemented in the fall of 


2014, proved to be beneficial as the applicants had more clarity around 


the process and the office fielded fewer questions regarding criteria. 


o This round of applications has highlighted some areas that need 


clarification on the C.Med application process.  The MDC and ADRIA staff 


will be collaborating to work through these challenges.  At this early 


juncture, the Board should be aware that we are moving towards the 


mandatory assessment model for C.Med applications commencing March 


2016, with adequate notice to members, higher application fees ($500), 


and paid assessment panels that will include one or more MDC members.  


 


The MDS has developed a succession plan, and is up to full strength with the 


appointment of Alasdair McKinnon.  The ADC is now short one member, although 


we have two previous applicants that have been referred to the Chair for 


consideration.  The ADC has yet to submit a succession plan, but we continue to 


track this down.   As highlighted in our Strategic Plan, a marketing campaign will be 


launched in 2015, and ADRIA is playing a leadership on ADRIC’s Designations 


Marketing subcommittee.  Designations continue to represent an important 


strategic opportunity to build and retain membership. 


 







Membership  


Paul Conway, Executive Director 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


I may sound like a broken record but, while we had anticipated a slight drop in 


membership over Q1, we have instead achieved another record in terms of Full 


memberships – 368 Full members!  We continue to enjoy a Full member retention 


rate of over 90%, and healthy roster of Student/Associate members.  2015 is off to a 


great start!  Strategically, as a membership organization first and foremost, our focus 


remains on attracting and retaining new FULL members and, given the number of 


non-member ADR Practitioners in the Province, we continue to set our sights high as 


we strive to build a Full membership list that exceeds 400. 


 


Reporting date Full Members Associate Members 
+ Student Affiliates 


Total Members 


    


BoD Meeting Apr 2015 368 146+3     (see note) 517 


BoD Meeting Jan 2015 365 149+4     (see note) 518 


BoD Meeting Dec 2014 363 148 511 


BoD Meeting Sep 2014 352 157 509 


BoD Meeting June 2014 341 143 484 


AGM May 2014 338 145 483 


End-2013 328 151 479 


End-2012 329 102 431 


ADRIA start (Sep 2012) 311 92 403 


AAMS (May 2012) 354 113 467 


AAMS (May 2011) 333 104 437 


    


    


ADRIA High (Jan 2015) 365 149+4 518 


Previous recorded high 
(Apr 2010) 


355 151 506 


Previous recorded low 
(Sep 2012) 


311 92 403 


    


    


NOTE:  The category of Student Affiliate Member is new for 2015 (it is similar to an 
Associate Member/Student  – typically an ADRIC member from another province) 


 


 







  Professional Development & Education 
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Tasha Innes, Education Assistant 


 


 Tasha and Jennifer have been working to design and build ADRIA’s new website and we are very 


excited about the new features and ease-of-use this website will provide. Because of the powerful 


capabilities of the platform we are using, once complete, the website will streamline education 


registration and membership processes, which will improve efficiency in the office. 


 We have confirmed our course calendar for core classes (Communications, Mediation, Arbitration 


and Separation & Divorce) up until summer 2016 and registration for those classes will be opened 


with the launch of our new website. 


 Communications in ADR ran in January, with 8 students in Edmonton and 10 in Calgary. The July class 


in Edmonton already has 7 registrants with almost three months to go, so it looks like it will be a large 


class.  


 ADRIC’s National Introductory Mediation course has been delivered to ADRIC along with the train-


the-trainer videos, and our development commitment is now complete. We ran the course again in 


March and April, with 8 students in Edmonton and only 4 in Calgary. 


 ADRIC’s National Introductory Arbitration course is still in need of some minor updating and we are 


working with ADRIC to complete the train-the-trainer videos. In March we ran the course in 


Edmonton with 11 students and in Calgary with 6 students. 


 We have confirmed course structure and scheduled dates for the Program Certificate in Separation 


and Divorce Mediation. The certificate consists of the completion of one four-day module and two 3-


day modules, as well as role-play evaluation and a written exam. A promo sheet has been made and 


circulated to members in an email blast and registration is open for the spring/summer dates in 


Edmonton, with a few people already registered. 


 After unsuccessfully trying to run our Negotiation course in the fall and again in February, we have 


decided to hold off on offering this again until we can re-strategize. 


 The newly revised Conflict Management for HR Professionals course has 6 registrants in Edmonton 


and will be running in late April. Paul is busy working on the material and arranging guest speakers 


from the HR field. 


 Paul and Tammy participated in the latest Reforming the Family Justice System meeting in March. We 


continue to represent the ADR field on this initiative. 


 With Tasha leaving this summer, we have begun the process of hiring a new Education assistant to 


replace her. With very few applications coming in after the job posting was circulated within our 


membership, the posting was put out to the general public and yielded many willing applicants, 


which Tammy is in the process of sifting through. 







 We are currently looking for new classroom space in Calgary as the board room at the North Calgary 


Business Centre is not adequate for some of our classes. We have explored the facilities at the 


Southern Alberta Division of the Commissionaires and are currently awaiting rental rates.  


 Tammy and Paul are on the ADRIC conference planning committee. Tammy is assisting with the 


speaker subcommittee.  


 Private contract training: 


o The four-day PHBI (Professional Home Builders Institute) Negotiation training ran in both cities, 


with 14 participants in Edmonton and 17 participants in Calgary. PHBI was very pleased with the 


course and has asked for refresher course to be delivered in the spring (this is under discussion). 


o We expect to deliver a one-day Negotiation training event for ATCO Electric in May. Details are 


still being worked out. 


 Tammy and Paul met with Concordia College in January and again in March to continue discussions 


regarding ADR/mediation training for Concordia business students and the creation of a minor in 


dispute resolution in the faculty. 


  Online practice groups were delayed as registration on our current website was not possible. We are 


building a separate area on our new website that will streamline this process and we should be able 


to start the practice groups in late spring. We have already been working with the coaches to train 


them on the web interface we will be using. We are excited to have some new coaches on this roster 


from outside major centers. 


 Specialty/Elective Courses: 


o Mediation Case Development ran in both training cities in February, with 6 students in Calgary 


and 10 students in Edmonton. 


o We have Restorative Practices scheduled to run in June, with 6 students already registered. 


o A new version of David Hill’s Oil & Gas course, Oil and Gas Fundamentals for Conflict 


Management Practitioners, will also run in June, with 3 students pre-registered. 


 
Professional Development & Education notes from the ED: 
 
Regretably, the Professional Development & Education team continues to be burdened with finalizing the 
National Introductory Courses.  Handover of the Mediation program was finalized in March, although the 
issue of national recommended pricing has arisen as a distraction.  April will see completion and 
handover of the Arbitration program.    
 


New Website & Directory of ADR Professionals 


 


Jennifer has the lead, and a launch is anticipated this Spring – hopefully in time for the 


AGM.   The staff are very excited about the capabilities of the new membership 


database (Wild Apricot), and discussions have commenced with Digital Tea and EVO to 


facilitate the transfer.  While there are always unexpected snags, it is hoped that the 


membership will experience a smooth transition, and enjoyed enhanced support.    


 







Human Resources     


As mentioned, resumes are under review to replace Tasha when she leaves Edmonton in June.   
Discussions are underway to bring on Tasha’s replacement and Truus as “employees” vice contractors, as 
ADRIA endeavours to comply more fully with CRA guidelines in this regard.   The staff recently took lunch 
together to celebrate the end of winter, and greatly appreciated the restaurant vouchers that the Board 
bestowed at Christmas. 
 


  Job Board 
 


As ADRIA gets more calls and job notifications, this service continues to grow and be well known. 


 


 
 


The Treasurer’s report is included in your Board materials, and I have added some end-March summaries. 


 


I am exceeding pleased with the ADRIA’s Q1 financial performance, and in particular the new Business 


Unit report which I have included in the Board materials.  I will lead the Board through a brief analysis of 


its contents on Saturday, but it clearly illustrates ADRIA’s business lines, what’s profitable, what’s 


provided as a necessity and/or a member service, and where improvements can be anticipated.  As a 


bottom line, however, it illustrates how ADRIA is keeping its expenditures under control and achieving a 


small profit. 


 


Our website and database development projects remain our largest potential strategic investment for 


2015, including the online Directory.  Along with Governance, Conference expenditures in 2015 will also 


have no counterbalancing revenue, as ADRIA continues to fully support the ADRIC National Conference.  


As our lease obligations in Calgary expire, we will revisit our future requirements and expenditures. 


 


Our Auditor continues to work towards an agreed deadline, in support of the AGM deliverables. 


 


 


Financial 
footnotes 







Accounts Payable: 


 
 


Cash+Reserves: 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


0


5000


10000


15000


20000


25000


30000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


We’ve been paying our bills! 







Cash+Reserves vs Deferred Revenue: 


 


 


 


Total Member Equity: 


 


 


 


-40000


-30000


-20000


-10000


0


10000


20000


30000


40000


50000


60000


70000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


0


10000


20000


30000


40000


50000


60000


70000


80000


Se
p


-1
3


O
ct


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


D
e


c-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


Fe
b


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


A
p


r-
1


4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
n


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


A
u


g-
1


4


Se
p


-1
4


O
ct


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


D
e


c-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


There have been 


strategic investments 


in staff and new 


capabilities, but we are 


still hampered by 


legacy projects and 


prior decisions. 







  Networking 
 


Our two collaborative ADR Networking Mixers, engaging ADRIA, AAMS, MRJC, AFMS, CMCS, ARJA, MRU, 


PMAST and Alberta Justice, continue to enjoy success – although attendance was lower than expected for 


the February and March events.  The committees and staff will explore the demand for a winter Mixer, 


and perhaps adopt a Spring/Fall format for the major centres in 2016.   ADRIA costs remain minimal 


($3K/year), although we are actively seeking sponsors to further reduce this cost (and/or the entry cost 


for attendees).  


 


Money has been put aside in the budget to provide our rural areas with access to PDev and Networking 


resources (a modest $2K).  These efforts will be supported by staff, and are currently communicated 


through ADRIA’s Bridging the Distance Committee.  


 


Of note, ADRIA representatives were recently invited to the AFMS’s Conference Wine & Cheese, where 


Paul, Stan & Wendy had the opportunity to interact further with both the outgoing and incoming MRJC 


Presidents, as well as a number of the AFMS members (many of whom are also ADRIA members).  ADRIA 


will continue to pursue closer relationships with the AFMS, focussing on designations, complaint 


procedures, reduced dual membership costs, networking events, and future joint conferences. 


 


  Newsletters 
 


Newsletters continue on a monthly format.  Jennifer is still hampered by the lack of an integrated 


membership/communications database, but is actively engaged in sourcing our options.  In support of 


Board activities, future issues will feature the On Board, updates on our Strategic Plan, and potentially 


Board profiles. 


 


AGM & Conference                  2015 
 


 


As determined by the Board, the 2015 AGM is scheduled for Friday evening, June 5th using a virtual 


format.  The Board also determined that the AGM would be immediately followed by the Board’s annual 


orientation session on Saturday, June 6th.  The Board will meet in at Self-Connection Books in Calgary, and 


be video linked to a membership assembly at Concordia University in Edmonton.  They will also be 


 







connected to other individual members and assemblies across the province by means of dial-in and on-


line tools.  AGM documentation would be provided on-line in advance, and on-screen.  The AGM would 


be scheduled for two hours, and greater overall interaction with the membership is anticipated.   


 


Board elections would be conducted electronically in advance of the AGM, in accordance with ADRIA 


bylaws.  The Nominating Committee will advise the membership of their recommended candidates no 


later than April 21st, and solicit additional nominations.  Nominations close in early May, and the ballots 


will be distributed on May 15th along with formal notification of the AGM and any Special Resolutions.   


ADRIA will be using a new online voting application Simply Voting, which will further professionalize our 


governance procedures.   Voting will end on May 26th, allowing sufficient time for the candidates to be 


notified, and for the new Board to retify its Executive positions in advance of the AGM.   


 


There will be no ADRIA Conference in 2015.  The 2015 National ADRIC Conference will take place at the 


Calgary Westin October 29-30th, with a pre-Conference day on October 28th.   Considerable progress has 


been made in establishing a Regional Committee and jump starting ADRIC’s planning process. 


 


The National (Combined) Committee is currently meeting every second week, and consists of: 


Dave McCutcheon (National) 


Derek Lloyd (National) 


Thierry Bériault (National) 


Roy McPhail (Regional ADRIA/ADRIM) 
Tegan & Don Schapira (Regional ADRIA) 
JB Isaacs (Regional ADRIA) 
Plus .....  
Janet McKay (ADRIC ED) 
Barbara Gilbert (ADRIC staff)  
Paul Conway (ADRIC ED) 
Tammy Borowiecki (ADRIA staff) 
 
Other members of the Calgary Committee include: 
Representation from AER (Julia Fulford, Anna Rose, Jennifer Wells) 
Dolores Herman 
Susan Robinson 
Virginia (Gini) Clark 
Barb Rangen 
.... and others, as they are added and the conference dates approach. 
 
The Conference theme (tentative) is Big Sky, Big Ideas.  The venue is the Westin hotel, which the 
Regional Committee toured on Friday.  Keynote speaker selection has commenced, and 
sponsorship/speaker proposals have been solicited, with an initial closing date of May 5th.  The 
four Conference streams will be Commercial applications, Mediation, Family/Workplace, and 
Miscellaneous (to include such topics as Community Mediation, Elder Mediation, Cultural DR 
Practices, Restorative Justice, etc.)   







Outreach & Leadership 


 
 


 Outreach activities continue as ADRIA continues to provide leadership and explore collaborative 


opportunities with organizations and institutions of strategic interest.   


 


Updates to the Board will include: 


  


ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) 


 National Insurance Committee  


 National IT Committee  


 National Marketing & Membership Committee (including recent logo proposals) 


o Corporate, Organizational and Educational membership Subcommittee 


o Designation Marketing Subcommittee 


o Roster Development Subcommittee 


 National Introductory Mediation & Arbitration Courses  


 Linkage to the ADRIC Board meetings 


 Presidents’ Round Table 


 


ADRIC Regional Affiliates, notably with the Western Provinces 


 Training, Conference, Membership fees, and MOU discussions with ADRIC 


 


Reforming the Family Justice System (RFJS) initiative 


 DR Sector Co-lead, and new initiatives being launched 


 


Conflict Resolution Day Planning & Marketing Committees (CR Day) 


 


Municipal Dispute Resolution Services Advisory Group (MDRS) 


 


Peer Mediation and Skills Training (PMAST Calgary)  


 


Alberta Restorative Justice Association (ARJA) 


 


Alberta Family Mediation Society (AFMS) 


 


Universities & Colleges (RRU, MRU, MacEwan, Concordia, etc) 








c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e c e


COMMUNICATION 10 8 7 10 15


CONFLICT MANAGEMENT FOR HR 6 0 6


SEP & DIVORCE MEDIATION 4 2 2 0 8


MEDIATION 8 4 5 4 13


2015 Professional Development Report
Courses January February March April May June July August September October November December Total


MEDIATION 8 4 5 4 13


SPECIALTY 6 10 9 6 19


ARBITRATION 6 11 6 11


TOTAL REGISTRATIONS 10 8 6 10 6 19 4 6 0 4 0 9 0 14 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 72


PRIVATE CONTRACTS $0 $18,075$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0$5,565 $6,510 $0 $0 $6,000


$20,000
$40,000
$60,000
$80,000
$100,000


$12,075 $6,000 $0 $0
$18,075$25,750


$97,110


2015 PRIVATE CONTRACT 
REVENUE


0
200
400
600
800
1000


84 12 30 126
314


516
226


56 55
337


813 896


2015 STUDENT DAYS


0
50


100
150
200
250


14 6 6 26
70


107
42 19 11


72


201 193


2015 COURSE REGISTRATIONS


$0
$0 $0


Calgary EdmontonCalgary Edmonton





		2015






From: ADR Institute - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca]  


Sent: April-06-15 1:28 PM 
To: jsanderson@sanlaing.ca; david.mccutcheon@dentons.com; michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca; 


anna.rose@aer.ca; bbhalla@jamsadr.com; tberiault@beriault.qc.ca; Paul Conway 
Cc: jim@mccartneyadr.com; william.j.hartnett@esso.ca; monit@adrcanada.ca 


Subject: Final ADRIC Logos 


 
TO:         ADRIC Membership and Marketing Committee 
FROM:  Bill Hartnett, Jim McCartney, and Janet McKay 
 
As you know, we have been working with different design firms to create a new logo, wordmarks, and 
“look” for our marketing and communications. At this time, we would like your feedback on what we 
consider to be the best three alternatives attached for your review. The text of the ADRIC name, in 
French and English, uses the same font.  
 
Please reply to monit@adrcanada.ca with your preferences ranked in order. 
 
We would appreciate your response by no later than Thursday, April 16. This will allow us to 
incorporate the survey results into a committee report to the ADRIC Board of Directors which meets on 
Friday, April 24 and Saturday, April 25.  
 
The logos under consideration continue to foster an image of multiple parties working toward resolution 
of disputes.  
 
We have also included some mock ups of potential affiliate logos, should affiliates wish to align their 
logo with the new ADRIC version. 
 
Other questions for consideration include: 


 Should we consider having regional affiliates use different colours on the new logo to distinguish 
them from one another - as some currently do? 


 Should we encourage regional affiliates to use the new ADRIC logo and rely on the affiliate’s 
name to distinguish them from ADRIC – as we do today? 


 Should we encourage regional affiliates to use the new ADRIC logo with the words “An affiliate 
of ADR Institute of Canada” or something similar in smaller font below their name?  


 
Monit will be soon be sending a poll for a full committee meeting. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Janet McKay 
Executive Director / Directrice générale 


 
 
405-234 Eglinton Avenue East  
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353  x/poste 105 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
janetmckay@adrcanada.ca 



mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca

mailto:jsanderson@sanlaing.ca

mailto:david.mccutcheon@dentons.com

mailto:michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca

mailto:anna.rose@aer.ca

mailto:bbhalla@jamsadr.com

mailto:tberiault@beriault.qc.ca

mailto:jim@mccartneyadr.com

mailto:william.j.hartnett@esso.ca

mailto:monit@adrcanada.ca

mailto:monit@adrcanada.ca

janet@adrcanada.ca

http://www.adrcanada.ca/





www.adrcanada.ca 
    


ADR Institute of Canada's New Arbitration Rules - effective December 1, 2014 
Nouvelles Règles d’arbitrage de l'IAMC - en vigueur le 1er décembre 2014 
 


  @ADRCanada   


 
unsubscribe/désabonner 


 
 
 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/

http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/arbitration.cfm

http://www.adrcanada.ca/francais/rules/arbitration.cfm

mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

https://www.facebook.com/ADRInstituteOfCanadaADRIC.IAMC

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCwA2kIDn6cqf2oUFxzYiN8A

https://twitter.com/ADRCanada






A 


        


 


B 


 


 


 


C 


   


 







Affiliate logo ideas (if they wish to coordinate with ADRIC new logo) 


 


ADR Institute of Saskatchewan 
An Affiliate of ADR Institute of Canada 


 


  


ADR Institute of Saskatchewan 
  Proudly affiliated with ADR Institute of Canada 


 


 


ADR Institute of Alberta 
An Affiliate of ADR Institute of Canada 


 


  


ADR Institute of Alberta 
Proudly Affiliated with ADR Institute of Canada 


 


ADR Institute of Alberta 
Affiliated with ADR Institute of Canada 


 


    Member 
    ADR Institute 
 


 








 


C0226207.v1 


TREASURER’S REPORT 


 Effective as of the end of February 28, 2015   


 Attachments 


o Balance Sheet February 28, 2015   


o Budget v. Actual Summary February 28, 2015 


o Pie charts Actual revenues and expenses 


o Pie chart budgeted revenues and expenses   


 All financial documents are available to board members who want copies of them. 


 March statements won’t be available until mid-April. . 


GENERAL COMMENTS  


 The changes to the cheque methodologies continue to be working well.  I see the list of cheques 


and expenses at the end of the month which allows for greater accountability as I have an 


oversight function as well.   


 The reporting to me is in a slightly different format that gives me a better idea of the snapshot 


of the different areas and the relative impact on the budget. 


 As an overall picture, revenues are currently down slightly(possibly due to membership 


renewals coming up by the end of April) but expenses are under budget resulting in an overall 


above budget number showing a decent profit considering the amount of time the figures 


represent. 


 Looking at the pie charts of actual and budgeted revenues and expenses the percentages are 


nearly bang on. 


FINANCIAL COMMENTS 


 My preference is not to go through all of the financial statements in any great detail as I suspect 


that it will bog down the process. 


 “Reserve Funds“ along with “Cash” together, both of which comprise very liquid assets, we are 


sitting at just under $85,000 which is very good and an indicator of our growing financial 


strength. 


 Looking at last year’s budget and last year’s results are somewhat difficult to correlate to future 


predictions given the substantial change in how the budgeted information is being presented.  


The general comment is that we are in much better shape than last year and it will take looking 


at next year’s budget and results before we can really have anything more than anecdotal 


evidence of where we are going and what we are spending tracked in a meaningful way 


between education and membership and accreditation.  Also, in 2015, we will be able to look 


back over ADRIA’s financial affairs along the newly organized business lines. 


 I’ve spoken with Paul on the “nutshell” status of the organization at the quarter poles 


(recognizing that we don’t have the formal financials as of yet) and he advises me that we are 


continuing with the trend towards financial stability.  Revenues have been down slightly 







 


C0226207.v1 


however expenses have been curtailed to address that.  Paul, Karen and I will be meeting to 


have a Q1 state of the union type discussion.  The plan is for this to happen before the AGM but 


it will depend on some availability issues.  Based on the materials received to date, I don’t think 


there will be a change in the overall plan or direction for the budget this year but we will 


continue to monitor the progress. 


 The previous general comment that our budget is fairly “thin” remains  valid although we are 


certainly on a much stronger footing than we have been in years past. 


COMMENTS ON AGM AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 The year-end figures have been put together and presented to the auditor.  We previously 


secured a commitment from the auditor to get the year end statements (at least in draft) by the 


end of April.  Paul has requested this a few days early in order to accommodate a vacation but 


we don’t anticipate any issues and the board should have something to see prior to the AGM.  


We may need to confer virtually on this and have me report via email however last year’s issues 


of not having the final statements before the AGM won’t be repeated. 


 








ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


February 28, 2015


March 10, 2015 5:07PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 10,487 $
Reserve Funds 74,017 
Accounts Receivable 22,289 
Prepaid Expenses 8,442 


Total Current Assets 115,235 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 4,206 $
Computer Equipment 8,748 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 1,865 


Total Property and Equipment 14,819 $


OTHER ASSETS


Total Other Assets 0 $


TOTAL ASSETS 130,054 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 0 $
Accrued Liabilities 26,156 
Deferred Revenue 74,728 
GST/HST Payable 3,130 
Due to ADRI 7,920 


Total Current Liabilities 111,934 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES


Total Long Term Liabilities 0 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 111,934 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 26,161 $
Net Income (Loss) (8,041)


Total Members' Equity 18,120 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 130,054 $








ADR Institute of Alberta


ACTUAL


Revenue and Expenses


February 2015


ACTUAL REVENUES


Member Services 17,552   


ADR Business Services 17,494   


Professional Development & Education 54,020   


Other Income 30          


89,096   


ACTUAL EXPENSES


Member Services 8,546     


ADR Business Services 15,353   


Professional Development & Education 48,561   


Operations 17,822   


Governance 6,855     


97,137   


Member 
Services


20%


ADR Business 
Services


20%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
60%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


9%


ADR Business 
Services


16%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
50%


Operations
18%


Governance
7%


EXPENSES


Report 3








ADR Institute of Alberta


BUDGET


Revenues and Expenses


February 2015


BUDGET REVENUES


Member Services 22,947   


ADR Business Services 19,017   


Professional Development & Education 57,010   


Other Income 30          


99,004   


EXPENSES


Member Services 14,068   


ADR Business Services 13,825   


Professional Development & Education 58,845   


Operations 20,930   


Governance 7,145     


114,813 


Member 
Services


23%


ADR Business 
Services


19%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
58%


Other Income
0%


REVENUES


Member 
Services


13%


ADR Business 
Services


12%


Professional 
Development & 


Education
51%


Operations
18%


Governance
6%


EXPENSES


Report 3








 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 February 2015


Feb Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


Income


Membership Fees Net of ADRIC 17,150 20,947 -3,797 82%


Membership Services 402 2,000 -1,598 20%


ADR Business Services 17,494 19,017 -1,523 92%


Professional Development & Education 54,020 57,010 -2,990 95%


Other Income 30 30 0 100%


Total Income 89,096 99,004 -9,908 90%


Expense


Member Services 8,546 14,068 -5,522 61%


ADR Business Services 15,353 13,825 1,528 111%


Professional Development & Education 48,561 58,845 -10,284 83%


Operations 17,822 20,930 -3,108 85%


Governance 6,855 7,145 -290 96%


Total Income 97,137 114,813 -17,676 85%


Net Income -8,041 -15,809 7,768 51%


 Page 1 of 1








ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA April 10, 11 2015                            Page 1 of 2 
 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA  


Friday, April 10, 2015  6 – 8:15  pm 


Dinner at The Keg, THE WESTIN CALGARY 


320 4th Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2P 2S6 Canada T 403.508.5225   


Saturday, April 11, 2015  8:00 am – 3:30 pm 


at  the Jasper Boardroom (17th floor), THE WESTIN CALGARY (See address above) 


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


FRIDAY       


4:30 pm  
Tour at The Westin ADRIC Conference facility 


(optional for Board members)  
 Paul  


6:00 pm  Dinner at The Keg    


SATURDAY   (coffee available in Jasper boardroom  at 7:45 am)    


8:00 am 1 WELCOME  & AGENDA REVIEW     


 1.1 Welcome/Call to order Record time Wendy  


 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any items  
Review  & 


Amend/Adopt 
Wendy 1.2 


8:10 am 2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)    


 2.1 January 31, 2015 (Board meeting) Review & Adopt Wendy 2.1 


8:15-10:15 3 Business arising    


8:15 am   3.1 Visioning  Wendy  


9:00 am 3.2 Strategic & Operational Plans Update/discussion 
Wendy/Stan/


Paul 
 


9:30 am 3.3 Board Evaluation  Review\Discussion Dolores  


10:00 am  Break     


10:15 am 3.3 2015 ADRIA  Elections, AGM & Orientation Update/discussion 
Stan/Paul/ 


Wendy 
 


10:35 am 3.4 2015 ADRIC Conference Update/discussion Paul/Dolores  


 4 Bylaw and Policy updates    


10:50 am 4.1 Board Policy Review (continued)  
Stan/Wendy/


Dolores 
4.1 


11:20 am 4.2 Bylaw Change proposal (5.5 Voting, item 6)  Barrie 4.2 


11:35 am 4.3 Board Travel Policy  Paul 4.3 


11:45 am  Lunch (catered)    


12:15 pm 
4.4 


4.4.1 


ED Evaluation process 


-ED Evaluation Committee (2) 
 


Wendy/Stan 


Wendy 
 







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA April 10, 11 2015                            Page 2 of 2 
 


1:05 pm 4.5 Complaints Policy/Dispute Resolution 
Review, discuss 


and/or adopt 


Joanne & 


Paul  
4.5 


 5 Reports (*mandatory)    


1:30 pm 5.1 


President: -Meeting with MRJC President 


       -MoU with AAMS 


       -Signed Agreement ADRIC-ADRIA 2012 


 Wendy 
5.1.1 


5.1.2 


1:35 pm 5.2 ED*   Paul 


5.2   


5.2.1 


5.2.2 


5.2.3 


2:00 pm 5.3 Treasurer*   Mike/Paul 


5.3 
5.3.1 
5.3.2 
5.3.3 
5.3.4 
5.3.5 
5.3.6 


2:10 pm 5.4 
Governance Committee 


-Nomination Committee 
 


Stan/Paul/ 


Angela/  
 


2:20 pm 5.5 
Board Committees/Task Forces 


-Mediation Advocacy Task Force 
 


Wendy & 


Joanne 


Paul 


 


2:40 pm 5.6 ADRIC Representative *  Chuck 5.6.1 


 6 New Business    


2:50 pm 6.1 ADRIC MOU content  Wendy  


 7 Learning Opportunities Discussion All  


3:05 pm 8 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities    


 8.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ Discussion Barrie  


 8.2 Invitations to Board Dinner June, 2015 Discussion All  


 9 Calendar Review  Wendy  


  
-May 14/15, 2015: IAF Conference Banff 


-October 28-30, 2015: ADRIC Conference CAL 


-November 19-20, 2015: ARJA Conference CAL 


Information & 


discussion 
  


 10 Board of Directors Calendar    


  AGM & Board Orientation June 5, 6 (CAL) Information Wendy  


3:15 pm 11 In-camera session   Wendy  


3.30 pm 12 Termination/Adjournment  Wendy  


 


Residual issues: 


A. Governance Committee to rewrite Board Policies 
B.  Privacy + CASL Legislation 
C. Reforming the Family Justice System initiative (RFJS) 








ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


March 31, 2015


April 07, 2015 4:50PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 15,985 $
Reserve Funds 121,018 
Accounts Receivable 15,564 
Prepaid Expenses 7,485 


Total Current Assets 160,052 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 3,956 $
Computer Equipment 7,810 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 1,802 


Total Property and Equipment 13,568 $


OTHER ASSETS


Total Other Assets 0 $


TOTAL ASSETS 173,620 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 0 $
Accrued Liabilities 38,806 
Deferred Revenue 82,043 
GST/HST Payable 5,608 
Due to ADRI 13,376 


Total Current Liabilities 139,833 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES


Total Long Term Liabilities 0 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 139,833 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 26,161 $
Net Income (Loss) 7,626 


Total Members' Equity 33,787 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 173,620 $








ADRIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 


HELD IN EDMONTON ON SATURDAY, JANUARY 31, 2015 


 


Attending: W. Donald Goodfellow, C.Arb, Stan Galbraith; Wendy Hassen, C. Med; Chuck 


Smith, Q. Med; Barrie Marshall (Secretary); Joanne Munro, C. Med.; Paul Conway (Executive 


Director) and Truus Souman (Secretary). 


Attending via Zoom: Dolores Herman, Q.Med.; Jeffery Jessamine, Q.Arb. 


Regrets: Jim Bancroft; Angela Boyes, Q. Med.; Mike Hokanson, Q.Med. 


 


MEETING COMMENCES: 8:45 a.m. 


 


1.0 Welcome and Agenda Review 


1.1 Welcome/Call to Order 


The President, Wendy Hassen, opened the meeting by indicating that she had hoped to hold a 


session the previous evening on the Vision of the ADRIA .  However, an insufficient number of 


the board members were able to attend the dinner and, accordingly, the visioning session was 


tabled.  Wendy Hassen indicated that a vision statement for the Board that better captures 


ADRIA’s goals, and relationship to and servicing of the needs of its community, is needed. 


 


1.2 Review of Agenda Items and Addition of Any Items 


It was agreed that item 3 (In-camera session) and 4.2 (Strategic & Operational Plans (Success 


Measures)) will be put over to the end of the meeting. 


 


2.0 Minutes of Previous Meetings  


2.1 Minutes of Meeting of December 13, 2014 


There was some discussion of the fact that the Board Meeting Minutes (items 2.2 and 2.3) 


referred to in the December 2014 Board Meeting Minutes and approved by e-mail voting would 


be reintroduced and voted on again as it was identified that the current by-laws state that any 


motion, outside a Board meeting, needs to be signed by all directors (5.5 Voting, item 6). 


 


 







 - 2 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 2 of 10 


ACTION ITEM: 


Bylaw change proposal to be prepared by Barrie for the next Board of Directors meeting. 


 


BOARD MOTION: 


It is moved by Joanne Munro, and seconded by Chuck Smith, that the minutes of the meeting of 


December 13, 2014, be approved.  Approved unanimously. 


 


4.0 Business Arising 


4.1 ADRIA Board Policy Review 


4.1.1 Foundation Pieces 


Stan Galbraith restated the mandate in the work that he has done regarding the Board policies.  


He advised that his objective was to project a positive tenor as opposed to a negative one.  He 


also advised that he strived to add consistency and he wanted to ensure that the board policies 


addressed ADRIA’s needs in relation to its foundational pieces.  Mr. Galbraith gave a number of 


examples: e.g. adopting the language consistently throughout the policies of “Ends, Mission 


Outcomes and Guiding Principles”. 


Mr. Galbraith reminded us that, in the Carver model, the Board sets the policy and the limitations 


on the functioning of the Executive Director but that the ED deals with all operational matters.  


He stated that his approach to revising board policies was motivated by the belief that the use of 


positive language was more empowering and consistent with the Carver model.  Other comments 


concerning the policies presented by Mr. Galbraith are as follows: 


 - the “General Executive Director Limitations” (policy type 2) were already consistent 


with the Carver model and should be left as is. 


 - the need to add something in the Board policies with respect to the skill set of the 


Executive Director.  It was felt that this would, in fact, be appropriate but that this would be 


better dealt with under the evaluation segment of the policies. 


 


 4.1.2 Board Role in Budgeting/Financing 


 - page 8, item 7 – there was extensive discussion with respect to whether or not the Board 


should be approving the budget.  Mr. Galbraith pointed out that the Carver model says that the 


Board does not approve the budget.  However, it was recognized by several members of the 


Board that a form of Board oversight with respect to the process given the potential financial 







 - 3 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 3 of 10 


liability of Board members.  There appeared to be a consensus, however, that the Board should 


not be engaging in a review of the line items of the budget or its details.  Dolores Herman 


indicated that if the Board feels constrained by the Carver model it should not be reluctant to 


move away from that model and be more engaged in terms of its budgetary oversight.  Barrie 


Marshall indicated that the Board should continue to follow the Carver model and not approve 


the budget but that the budget should be reviewed in terms of its consistency with financial 


objectives of the Board.  The ED pointed out that the “Business Unit Report” was one of the 


documents that he and the staff are preparing to provide the Board with more meaningful 


operational information as an example of a document that allows the Board to understand the 


financial operations of ADRIA.  Don Goodfellow stated that, in his view, it is essential for the 


Board to approve, by motion, the budget and that it needs to be reviewed by the Board on an 


ongoing basis.  Wendy Hassen stated that, while the Board does not ordinarily delve into the 


details of the budget, the Board should not be restricted from doing so if members so choose.  


Chuck Smith stated that what the Board does, in reviewing the budget, is to approve a financial 


plan based on the budget.  Stan Galbraith proposed a process that permits, but does not mandate, 


the Board to delve into the details.  There seemed to be a consensus of Board members with Mr. 


Galbraith’s statements in this regard. 


There was also some discussion about item 7, “Financial Planning”.  The current wording 


appears to fetter the ED from striving to increase revenues by more than 10%.  It was agreed that 


this was certainly not the intention of the policy and that earning a greater amount of revenue 


was very much an appropriate objective for the ED.  Chuck Smith indicated, however, that an 


issue might arise if revenues go up dramatically in a year as it might compromise ADRIA’s not-


for-profit status.  It was agreed that the wording “without Board approval” is an effective way for 


the Board to ensure that it was monitoring both revenues and expenses in this regard. 


Further discussion of the Board policies was tabled when it was determined that the latest 


version of Mr. Galbraith’s draft policies had not yet been posted on BoardSuite. 


 


 4.1.3 ED Performance Review & Compensation 


Wendy Hassen outlined the content of the draft policy prepared by Dolores Herman, Wendy 


Hassen, and the ED for sections 4 and 5 of the Board policies.  She indicated that the 


recommendation is for a committee of two individuals.  She stressed the importance of the 


committee obtaining input from Board members and staff, as well as other members, volunteers, 







 - 4 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 4 of 10 


peers, and partners in the ADR community when felt necessary.  Dolores Herman suggested that 


the evaluation committee reach out to the ADR community every two years to obtain feedback 


on the ED’s performance. 


Wendy Hassen questioned whether soliciting input from the staff should be mandatory.  Chuck 


Smith indicated that it is important that there be a measure of flexibility in terms of the input the 


committee seeks out.  Stan Galbraith pointed out that it was important that the draft policy be 


consistent with the other Board policies, the job description, and the ED’s contract.  It was 


agreed that the policy should set out the content of the ED’s job description. 


It was agreed that the deadline for assessment of the ED need not be 45 days prior to the AGM, 


provided it was done prior to the AGM.  Mr. Galbraith stated that, while there was no need for a 


45 day lead time, it was important that the process commenced 60 to 90 days prior to the AGM.  


Wendy Hassen indicated that the committee must have everything complete in time for the last 


Board meeting prior to the AGM. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


To determine whether the term “deliverables” is a defined term in the ED’s contract. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


Wendy Hassen and Dolores Herman are to work with Stan Galbraith to revise the language in the 


policy and provide the revised policy at the next meeting. 


 


 4.1.4 Board Expenses Provisions 


Discussions of this item included: 


 - the optics of a discrepancy between reimbursement policies for Board members and for 


staff. 


 - a comprehensive definition of what constitutes “reasonable” in relation to expenses. 


A consensus emerged that item 1 of the policy 11 “Board Claims”, be along the lines of 


“Director expenses typically include parking, mileage, conference costs, meals, and other 


expenses with prior approval from the Board at rates as determined by the Board.” 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to come up with suggested rates. 







 - 5 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 5 of 10 


ACTION ITEM: 


Item for next meeting will be to consider the expense form and modify or revise the current 


claim form. 


 


4.2 Strategic & Operational Plans (success Measures) (Wendy/Stan/Paul) 


Update & discussion. 


 


 4.3 2015 ADRIA Elections, AGM & Orientation 


Stan Galbraith advised that there would be a different format this year since there would be no 


ADRIA conference in the spring because of the ADRIC conference in the fall.  Mr. Galbraith 


advised that the AGM this year would be conducted by way of technology on June 5.  Mr. 


Galbraith advised that ADRIA had contracted with a Mike Finch who has a video conferencing 


facility.  The bulk of the Board members will be asked to gather at this facility with the 


remaining Board members to convene at a similar facility in Edmonton.  Measures will be taken 


to allow for persons participating from other locals to connect remotely.  The elections for new 


directors will take place prior to the AGM.  In this regard, Mr. Galbraith advised that three 


current Board members terms expire this year, namely, Wendy Hassen, Dolores Herman and 


Barrie Marshall. 


Mr. Galbraith also recommended a more structured approach to the selection of the president.  


An example would be the election of a president-elect/incoming president who would assume 


that position for a year and then step into the presidency the following year.  It was agreed 


amongst the Board members that this was a good idea and that there should be some way to 


permit the incoming Board to participate in the selection of the incoming officers ahead of the 


AGM.  An amendment would be necessary to make it clear that the Board could not choose the 


new president.  Barrie Marshall suggested that the “president designate” position should be 


entitled “Vice-President”.  The ED expressed a concern that the Board locking itself into a 


specific protocol might create problems.  For example, if the president designate/vice-president 


proved him or herself to be an unsuitable candidate for president.  The Board, in any event, 


agreed that the nominating committee should be asking current Board members if they wish to 


stand as candidates for the position of president designate/vice-president. 


 


 







 - 6 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 6 of 10 


 4.4 2015 ADRIC Conference 


The ED advised that there is a great deal of work to be done in February to deal with the ADRIC 


conference in the fall.  Ms. Hassen stated that it is important for ADRIA to know exactly what it 


is that ADRIC expects ADRIA’s role to be in the Conference and in preparing for the 


Conference.  Chuck advised that the local office typically provides staff and administrative 


support. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED to send an e-mail to his counterpart at ADRIC and ask what ADRIC’s committee 


expects ADRIA to do and suggest items that ADRIA would be prepared to take on.  For 


example, ADRIA to request the mayor to speak at the conference and for ADRIA to assist in the 


organization of a western themed event. 


 


 5.0 Bylaw and Policy Updates 


 5.1 Complaints Policy/Dispute Resolution (Agenda item 4.3. from Nov. 22, 2013) 


The ED has gathered the policies from the other Boards, including Ontario, the Atlantic 


Provinces, Saskatchewan, BC, and Manitoba.  The ED advised there are many similarities 


between these various policies.  The ED pointed out that there is still some missing parts to the 


complaints policy including a provision with respect to the appointment of legal counsel and 


whether or not there should be a right to impose a fine.  Questions were asked if we need to have 


a waiver of other remedies included in the policy and whether a waiver creates legal 


ramifications.   The ED questioned the need to have a resolution by a hearing committee 


approved by the Board.  Don Goodfellow suggested that there should be a right of appeal to the 


Board from a decision by a hearing committee. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


The ED and Joanne Munro to continue to work on the policy and present a policy to the Board at 


the next meeting. 


 


Wendy Hassen indicated that there would be a need to review the policy with ADRIC to ensure 


that ADRIC endorses the sanctions imposed by ADRIA.  As an example, she gave the situation 


where a designation is being withdrawn. 







 - 7 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 7 of 10 


6.0 Reports 


 6.1 President 


Wendy Hassen stated that she had nothing much to report.  She raised the need for the Board to 


consider whether it should have its own operational plan, including specifics on how Board 


members might better further the objectives of ADRIA. 


 


 6.2 ED  


The ED summarized the contents of his report available on BoardSuite. 


 


 6.3 Treasurer 


Mike Hokanson was away on vacation and, accordingly, there was no Treasurer’s Report 


currently available. 


The Directors were provided with the ADRIA Balance Sheet per 31 December 2014 and the 


ADRIA Income Statement – Summary from calendar year 2014 (posted on BoardSuite). 


Paul added some comments. 


 


 6.4 Governance Committee 


 Nomination Committee 


Stan Galbraith advised that he had already delivered his report. 


 


 Board Self Evaluation 


Dolores Herman reported that last year’s results of the Board’s self-evaluation are posted on 


Board Suite.  She advised that they had used “Fluid Surveys”, which was not the best suited and 


had certain limitations.  The next Board self evaluation will be conducted with the use of 


“Survey Monkey”.  The survey will have two parts: 


 1. General questions regarding the business and work of the Board. 


 2. A section on Board member engagement. 


It will be of a similar length to last year’s survey.  The objective of the self-evaluations will be to 


create a template that will be used to develop a baseline to work from in the future.  Ms. Herman 


advised that there was less than full participation in last year’s survey and she urged all Board 


members to participate in this year’s survey.  She advised that this year’s evaluation will pay 


particular attention to the availability of timely and accurate management and financial 







 - 8 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 8 of 10 


information.  She also urged Board members to provide input on questions to be included in the 


survey.  She will be providing the draft survey questions in early February and asked for an 


immediate response so the survey can be sent out later this month.  Wendy Hassen commented 


regarding question 10, namely, “There is adequate feedback to directors about their contributions 


to the Board and committees by the chair of the Board and committees” which generated three 


“disagree” comments.  She inquired as to the sort of feedback Board members want.  Barrie 


Marshall suggested that the “disagree” comment was not necessarily a negative comment but 


rather simply a reflection of the fact that there was no formal feedback process currently in place.  


Galbraith agreed with this and advised that it would be most useful for members to have this 


feedback during their first year. 


 


 6.5 Board Committees/Task Forces 


 Mediation Advocacy Task Force 


Joanne Munro summarized the responses that the task force had received from numerous parties 


which had been canvassed in that regard.  Remarks were, however, confined to the responses 


received from Alberta respondents.  In this regard, she advised that there were 111 persons who 


responded. 


Some of the findings of were as follows: 


 - ADRIA is largely a profession of older people 


 - 29% of the respondents were lawyers and 80% were ADRIA members 


 - 86% would like to see more paid work 


 - 54% hold either a Q. Med. or C. Med. designation 


 - 30% charge between $150 and $249/hours and 7% charge more than $500/hour 


 - a number of respondents complained about the compensation paid by the government 


regarding the Small Claims Court mediation process ($75/session). 


 - many commented that a great number of unqualified individuals are providing services 


at discounted rates.  Some suggested an advocacy role to be asserted by ADRIA, which would 


include for example, lobbying government for additional compensation. 


 - 70% of the respondents provide pro bono services. 


Ms. Munro advised that the task force was currently collating its data and that the various 


volunteers on the committee were writing individual sections of the report.  The report will likely 


be available in time for the AGM. 







 - 9 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 9 of 10 


ACTION ITEM: 


The Mediation Advocacy Task Force to strive to have its report available for the AGM. 


 


 6.6 ADRIC Representative 


Chuck Smith advised that there had been no meeting since the last meeting but that ADRIC’s 


various committees had been meeting on a regular basis. 


 


 7.0 New Business 


 7.1 Condo Report 


Chuck Smith reminded the Board that he and Deborah Howes had participated with government 


representatives at the invitation of the government; in a meeting respecting the amendment of the 


Condominium Property Act.  At this meeting the government had solicited the views of the 


ADRIA representatives respecting the incorporation of ADR into its new legislation.  The draft 


Condominium Property Amendment Act, which has recently been released by the government, 


does include a dispute resolution process with a tribunal which will adjudicate upon disputes that 


arise in the context of condominium property.  A pilot project, in this regard, will be launched in 


Edmonton and Calgary.  Mr. Smith further advised that ADRIA had been recognized for its input 


into this process. 


The Board felt it would be timely for ADRIA to assist the government in terms of establishing its 


tribunal and that ADRIA should approach the government to ask specifically how it could assist 


in this regard.  Barrie Marshall suggested that ADRIA should specifically suggest to the 


government that ADRIA could provide valuable assistance by forwarding the names of ADRIA 


members as appropriate representatives on the tribunal.  In this regard, it was agreed that 


Deborah Howes, with her background in dispute resolution and condominium property would be 


an ideal selection.   


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to make an initial contact with the government, contacts to be provided by Chuck Smith, to 


offer ADRIA’s assistance with the establishment of the tribunal and inquire regarding other 


assistance the government might like to receive from ADRIA.  The ED may then reach out to 


other Board members in this regard. 


 







 - 10 -  


– ADRIA BOARD MINUTES January 31, 2015 – For Approval  Page 10 of 10 


 8.0 Learning Opportunities 


Tabled to the next meeting.  This matter will, however, be addressed in the Board self-evaluation 


process. 


 


 9.0 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities 


 9.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ – February 2015 


The next ‘On Board’ could be issued in early to mid March, however given the focus of the work 


at this meeting on policy, there may not be much of interest to report to members. 


 


 9.2 Invitations to Board Dinner April 17, 2015 


There was discussion of moving the next meeting, currently scheduled for April 17 and 18, to 


April 24 and 25.  Certain Board members, namely, Barrie Marshall and Don Goodfellow are 


currently unavailable for the 17/18th dates. 


 


ACTION ITEM: 


ED to send out a survey on availability of Board members for dates alternative to the current 


April 17/18 dates. 


 


With respect to the dinner, which will take place on the Friday evening, it was agreed that 


(AFMS) and Deborah Novakowsky (ARJA) would be invited.  It was also agreed that Bill 


Hartnett, the past president of ADRIC, should be invited because of his role regarding the 


ADRIC Calgary Conference. 


 


3.0 In Camera Session (2:30 to 2:45) 


4.2 Strategic & Operational Plans (Success Measures) 


Ms. Hassen advised that there was insufficient time to deal with this topic adequately and 


accordingly it was tabled to the next meeting.  She will send out a survey in the meantime to 


elicit input from the various Board Members.  Ms. Hassen will also send out materials regarding 


an opportunity for brain storming among the members in regard to a new “Vision” for ADRIA. 


 


THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 3:00 PM. 








Comments on any aspect of the Strategic Plan:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             


St
ra


te
gi


c D
ire


ct
io


ns (
Goals)


 Enhance
 th


e va
lu


e, a
w


are
ness


, r
eputa


tio
n o


f a
nd a


cc
ess


 


to
 A


DR se
rv


ice
s.


St
re


ngt
hen o


ur P
ro


fe
ss


io
n.


Stre
ngt


hen A
DRIA


 a
s a


 m
em


bers
hip


 o
rg


aniza
tio


n.


 St
re


ngt
hen th


e lo
ng t


erm
 su


st
ain


abili
ty


 o
f A


DRIA
.


STRATEGIES  RANK 1 2 3 4


1. Increase ADRIA’s Profile by Forging Strategic Partnerships


2. Increase the Value of ADRIA/ADRIC Membership to Practising  ADR 


Professionals 


3.  Engaging New ADR Practitioners 


4.  Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a 


Valuable Secondary Qualification 


5.  Provide Leadership to Strengthen Alberta’s ADR Community 


6.  Promote ADR Awareness within the General Public, Government and 


Business Sectors 


7.  Promote Chartered Designations


8.  Maximize the Potential of Technology 


9.  Develop New Revenue Streams


10.  Adopt Best Business Practices  


11.  Promote High Professional Standards & Ethical Conduct


NAME:


Success Indicators for 2015 include:








April 07, 2015 3:04PM ADR Institute of Alberta
BUSINESS UNIT REPORT


Three Months Ended March 31, 2015


2015 2015 3 Months Ended YTD Variance 2014 2013
Budget YTD Budget March 31, 2015 Better (Worse) Actual Audited


than Budget


Governance
Less: Direct Costs 45,027 $ 10,637 $ 10,183 $ 454 $ 47,375 $ 41,163 $
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 6,804 1,612 1,327 286 6,575 7,898 


Total Governance (51,831)$ (12,249)$ (11,510)$ 740 $ (53,950)$ (49,061)$


Membership 124,900 $ 39,008 $ 32,142 $ (6,866)$ 93,375 $ 101,780 $
Less: Direct Costs 64,139 18,231 12,338 5,893 43,485 56,199 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 34,018 8,062 6,634 1,428 32,874 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Membership 26,743 $ 12,716 $ 13,171 $ 455 $ 17,016 $ 6,090 $


ADR Business Services 96,705 $ 26,026 $ 22,503 $ (3,523)$ 80,810 $ 66,491 $
Less: Direct Cost 84,736 20,717 22,257 (1,540) 68,882 63,933 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 3,225 2,653 571 13,150 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) ADR Business Services (1,638)$ 2,084 $ (2,407)$ (4,492)$ (1,222)$ (13,238)$


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT


Certificate Programs 361,555 $ 90,315 $ 80,680 $ (9,635)$ 336,868 $ 393,982 $
Less: Direct Costs 246,173 63,317 47,363 15,954 205,318 225,590 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 34,018 8,062 6,634 1,428 32,874 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Certificate Programs 81,364 $ 18,937 $ 26,684 $ 7,747 $ 98,676 $ 128,901 $


Specialty & Professional  Dev 45,000 $ 7,200 $ 7,800 $ 600 $ 67,721 $ 13,500 $
Less: Direct Costs 52,034 13,646 10,588 3,058 48,319 25,379 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 3,225 2,653 571 13,150 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Specialty & Professional Dev (20,641)$ (9,671)$ (5,441)$ 4,229 $ 6,252 $ (27,675)$


Contract Training 67,600 $ 13,600 $ 12,100 $ (1,500)$ 27,295 $ 132,032 $
Less: Direct Costs 41,046 15,144 14,760 384 40,935 94,038 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 3,225 2,653 571 13,150 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Contract Training 12,947 $ (4,769)$ (5,313)$ (545)$ (26,790)$ 22,198 $


Conference 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 23,693 $ 26,865 $
Less: Direct Costs 17,700 4,425 4,347 78 32,811 29,836 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 13,607 3,225 2,653 571 13,149 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Conference (31,307)$ (7,650)$ (7,000)$ 649 $ (22,267)$ (18,767)$


Designation & Accreditation 6,950 $ 4,475 $ 4,575 $ 100 $ 9,700 $ 15,145 $
Less: Direct Costs 13,192 2,898 3,852 (954) 11,949 13,093 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 6,804 1,612 1,327 286 6,575 7,898 


Net Profit (Loss) Designation & Accreditation (13,046)$ (35)$ (604)$ (568)$ (8,824)$ (5,846)$


Revenue Other Income 180 $ 45 $ 46 $ 1 $ 1,907 $ 1,826 $


Total Revenue 702,890 $ 180,669 $ 159,846 $ (20,823)$ 641,369 $ 751,621 $
Total Expense 700,119 181,261 152,222 29,039 630,571 707,193 
Net Profit (Loss) 2,771 $ (592)$ 7,624 $ 8,216 $ 10,798 $ 44,428 $








 


ADR INSTITUTE OF ALBERTA 


BOARD POLICIES 
 


[Established under the authority of Bylaw 4.1] 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 DRAFT CHANGES 2015-04  for Board review – April 11, 2015  


 Sections in Pink Highlighting are priority and will be addressed first  


 Highlighted Sections to be discussed at the April 11 Board Meeting  


 


 


 


 







 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 1 


Contents 


POLICY TYPE: I ENDS ................................................................................................................................................ 3 


1. Vision ..................................................................................................................................................................... 3 


2. Mission ................................................................................................................................................................... 3 


3. Mission Outcomes ................................................................................................................................................. 3 


4. Guiding Values ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 


POLICY TYPE: II EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS ............................................................................................... 5 


1. General Executive Director Limitations ................................................................................................................. 5 


2.  Financial Planning and Activities ........................................................................................................................... 5 


3. Financial Condition ................................................................................................................................................ 6 


4. Security & Operating Reserve ................................................................................................................................ 6 


5. Asset Protection ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 


6.  Staff Treatment ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 


7. Compensation and Benefits ................................................................................................................................... 9 


8. Contracts and Agreements .................................................................................................................................... 9 


9. Member Relations ................................................................................................................................................. 9 


10. National and Affiliate Relations ......................................................................................................................... 11 


11. Emergency Executive Succession ....................................................................................................................... 11 


POLICY TYPE: III BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS ................................................................................. 12 


1. Delegation to the Executive Director ................................................................................................................... 12 


2. Monitoring and Ongoing Reporting from the Executive Director ....................................................................... 12 


3. Communications and Counsel to the Board of Directors .................................................................................... 13 


4. Executive Director Position Description .............................................................................................................. 14 


5. Performance Appraisal ........................................................................................................................................ 14 


Appraisal Committee ........................................................................................................................................... 14 


Annual Appraisal .................................................................................................................................................. 14 


Finalizing and Approving the Appraisal ............................................................................................................... 15 


6. Executive Director Compensation Review ........................................................................................................... 15 


POLICY TYPE: IV BOARD WORK ............................................................................................................................... 17 


1. Board Job Description .......................................................................................................................................... 17 


2. Strategic Planning ................................................................................................................................................ 17 


Preparing to Build ................................................................................................................................................ 17 


Strengthening the Foundation ............................................................................................................................ 18 


Designing a Blueprint ........................................................................................................................................... 18 


Building a Framework .......................................................................................................................................... 18 


3. Linkage to Ownership .......................................................................................................................................... 18 


4. Complaints ........................................................................................................................................................... 19 


Implementation ................................................................................................................................................... 19 


5. Best Practices of Policy-Based Governance ......................................................................................................... 20 


6. Governing Style .................................................................................................................................................... 21 


7. Director Code of Conduct .................................................................................................................................... 22 


Implementation ................................................................................................................................................... 23 


Discipline of Board Members .............................................................................................................................. 23 


8. Best Practices in Writing Policies ......................................................................................................................... 24 


9. Board Role in Advocacy ....................................................................................................................................... 25 







 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 2 


10. Board Role in Revenue Generation.................................................................................................................... 25 


11. Board Planning and Agendas ............................................................................................................................. 26 


Implementation ................................................................................................................................................... 26 


12. The Board Budget .............................................................................................................................................. 26 


13. Board Expense Claims ........................................................................................................................................ 27 


14. President’s Role ................................................................................................................................................. 28 


15. Officers’ Roles .................................................................................................................................................... 29 


16. Board Committees ............................................................................................................................................. 29 


Implementation: Terms of Reference ................................................................................................................. 29 


17. New Director Orientation .................................................................................................................................. 30 


18. Board Evaluation ................................................................................................................................................ 31 


19. Policy Review ..................................................................................................................................................... 31 


20. Glossary of Terms .............................................................................................................................................. 32 


Education ............................................................................................................................................................... 35 


Experience ............................................................................................................................................................. 35 


Knowledge/Skills\Abilities .................................................................................................................................... 36 


 


  







Policy I: ENDS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 3 


POLICY TYPE: I ENDS 


1. Vision 


ADRIA is the strongest and most vibrant Appropriate Dispute Resolution membership organization in Canada -  


recognized for advancing excellence in the profession and it’s professionals.   


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 12, 2013 


MONITORING DATE: 


2. Mission 


To provide leadership and services in Appropriate Dispute Resolution (ADR) to our members by: 


 Fostering excellence in negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices, 


 Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta, 


 Providing excellence in ADR professional development, 


 Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes, 


 Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability and designations for the ADR profession, 


  


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 12, 2013 


MONITORING DATE: 


 


3. Mission Outcomes 


•  Enhance the value, awareness, reputation of and access to ADR services.  


• Strengthen our Profession 


• Strengthen ADRIA as a membership organization.  


• Strengthen the long term sustainability of ADRIA as an organization.  


 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 12, 2013 MONITORING DATE:  







Policy I: ENDS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 4 


4. Guiding Values 


Excellence:  


We challenge ourselves to deliver the highest quality programs and services. We stay abreast of new ideas and 


developments and seek out changes and innovations that help us continuously raise the bar in everything we do. 


Uncompromising Ethics: 


 We treat others with honesty, openness, fairness and respect in every situation. 


Collaboration:    


We value different views and ideas and believe that by working effectively together and with others we can reach 


our goals. We embrace the opportunity to explore mutual interests and new relationships. We welcome 


opportunities to leverage our resources through partnering.   


Accountability:  


We steward our resources with diligence and care. We honour the commitments we make to others. 


Leadership:  


We will promote new and important directions and opportunities for our profession and our organization, even 


though the path may be difficult. We recognize it is only through trying new ideas and learning from our failures 


that we can grow and move forward.  


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 12, 2013  


MONITORING DATE: 


 







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 5 


 


POLICY TYPE: II EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


1. General Executive Director Limitations  


The Board - Executive Director relationship is based on a governance model designed to create a strong Board 


working with a strong Executive Director.  The Board creates  the Mission, Vision and Guiding Values (see Policy 


Type: I). The Board then empowers the Executive Director to use whatever means the Executive Director in his or 


her sole discretion determines appropriate to achieve the Ends, subject only to Limitations created by the Board 


and as more particularly stated in this Policy. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2013 


MONITORING DATE: 


2.  Financial Planning and Activities 


All financial planning and activities must be done with a primary objective of avoiding financial jeopardy or 


compromising the ADRIA Ends policies. 


Accordingly, the Executive Director must cause or allow financial planning or activities which: 


1. Contain sufficient information to project such items as: revenues and expenses, separations of capital and 


operational items, and planning assumptions. 


2. Are partnered with an annual plan and budget that implements the Board’s stated outcomes. The annual plan 


and budget must be made available for review and scrutiny of the Board. 


3. Plans to spend less in any fiscal year than is conservatively projected to be received. 


4. Allows the current assets to stay above the level required to meet short term liabilities, except on a short-term 


basis. 


5. Provides sufficient funds for Board activities during the year. 


6. Provides for multi-year sustainability. 


7. Avoids any significant deviation of budgeted or planned expenses that would cause ADRIA to incur a loss in 


any fiscal quarter or year, unless specifically approved in advance by the Board. 


 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 18, 2014   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


  







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 6 


3. Financial Condition 


If the financial condition is in jeopardy, the Executive Director must immediately notify the Board.  


The Executive Director must not do any of the following without permission of the Board.  


1. Expend more funds than have been received in the fiscal year to date unless a debt guideline is met: that 


ADRIA cannot be indebted in an amount greater than can be repaid by certain, otherwise unencumbered 


revenues within 90 days. 


2. Allow any significant deviation of ADRIA expenses from that sanctioned by the Board. 


3. Disburse funds in excess of $5000 unless authorized by a Board signing authority. 


4. Allow the operating account to drop below the amount needed to settle payroll and debts in a timely 


manner. 


5. Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be overdue or inaccurately filed. 


6. Operate without written policies and procedures to oversee common financial operations including: 


banking, payroll, petty cash, and storage of records. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 18, 2014   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY, JUNE, AUGUST, NOVEMBER 


 


4. Security & Operating Reserve 


ADRIA needs to protect itself against unforeseen loss of income or unanticipated expenses. 


Any decision of a financial nature must be made with reference to the budgeted allocation for reserve funds. The 


Executive Director must not knowingly deviate from the budget allocations and should circumstances occur that 


may result in a deviation, the Executive Director will immediately notify the Board. To achieve this objective, the 


Executive Director will: 


1. Consider any investments as part of this reserve. 


2. Not diminish these funds to any significant degree without explicit permission from the Board. 


3. Build the security reserve to exceed $100,000 and the operating reserve to a long term average of 


$50,000 or more.  


4. Maintain an amount of not less than 3 months operating expenses in this fund. 


5. Add to the investment funds the income earned on those investments. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: JANUARY 18, 2014 


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY, JUNE, AUGUST, NOVEMBER 







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 7 


  







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 8 


5. Asset Protection 


The Executive Director must protect and maintain the assets of ADRIA.  Accordingly, the Executive Director must : 


1. Insure all assets against theft and casualty losses with replacement value coverage.  


2. Maintain at least $1 million of liability coverage for the Board, members, staff and ADRIA itself. 


3. Maintain the offices and equipment with only reasonable wear and tear. 


4. Maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of ADRIA assets and information. 


5. Ensure that ADRIA, its Board or staff are not purposefully exposed to claims of liability. 


6. Maintain and enforce a written operational policy that meets the requirements of FOIP. 


7. Ensure that all financial transactions and records comply with generally accepted accounting principles. 


8. Invest or hold funds in compliance with the prudent investor rules as stated in the Trustee Act of Alberta.  


9. Only acquire, encumber, or dispose of an interest in real estate including office space with the approval of 


the Board. 


10. Implement recommendations of the annual financial audit which were accepted by the Board or report 


any non-compliance to the Board. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: SEPTEMBER –  


 


6.  Staff Treatment 


Dealings with staff and volunteers must be fair, dignified and compliant with human rights and labour standards 


legislation. 


Accordingly, the Executive Director must: 


1. Work with written personnel policies and procedures which clarify personnel rules for staff and volunteers, 


including a grievance procedure. 


2. Orient staff and volunteers about their rights under these personnel policies and procedures and allow staff 
and volunteers to present a grievance to the Board when the grievance procedures have been exhausted. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: 


 







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 9 


7. Compensation and Benefits 


Compensation and benefits to staff, employees, consultants, contract workers and volunteers, must be undertaken 


in a manner that ensures fiscal integrity. 


Accordingly, the Executive Director will: 


1. Only change compensation and benefits with Board approval. 


2. Not guarantee the employment of any staff beyond his or her written agreement. 


3. Pay compensation and benefits which equate with the local and professional market. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: MAY 


 


8. Contracts and Agreements 


In order to complete the essential work of ADRIA, the Executive Director will relate to others through contracts 


and agreements and will: 


1. Ensure the contracts and agreements comply with Ends. 


2. Ensure that ADRIA maintains external contractors’ requirements. 


3. Adhere to accepted best practices. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: MARCH 


 


9. Member Relations 


Recognizing that ADRIA is a member-owned organization and so that the members of ADRIA are well served, the 


Executive Director must: 


1. Act in compliance with the bylaws of ADRIA. 


2. Operate with a privacy and complaint policy for all services and programs 


3. Obtain reasonable member input and involvement in making decisions. 


4. Treat members in a dignified, fair and polite manner, in compliance with human rights legislation. 


 







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 10 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: APRIL 


  







Policy II: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 11 


10. National and Affiliate Relations 


The Executive Director is responsible for developing and maintaining positive relations with the ADR Institute of 


Canada (ADRIC) and its Affiliates. 


As a society which values relationships, the Executive Director must: 


1. Consider the impact of decisions on any of the other organizations. 


2. Operate within ADRIC guidelines unless they conflict with ADRIA Ends or policies, in which case the conflict will 


be presented to the Board. 


3. Nurture a spirit of cooperation among the Affiliates; sharing ideas, resources and energy. 


4. Facilitate the growth and development of ADR in Canada. 


5. Actively participate in ADRIC initiatives. 


6. Relate to other similar and appropriate organizations that would further the goals of ADRIA in government, 


business and the community. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: DECEMBER 


 


11. Emergency Executive Succession  


In order to protect ADRIA from the sudden loss of chief executive services, the Executive Director must ensure 


there is at least one other individual familiar with Board and Executive Director issues and processes. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: JULY 


 







Policy III: BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 12 


POLICY TYPE: III  BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


 


1. Delegation to the Executive Director  


The Board’s job is generally confined to establishing the broadest policies. Implementation of these policies is 


delegated to the Executive Director . 


1. All Board authority delegated to staff is delegated through the Executive Director . 


2. Ends (Mission, Vision and Guiding Values – see Policy Type: I) direct the Executive Director to achieve certain 


results; Executive Director Limitations (see Policy Type: II) guide the Executive Director to act within 


acceptable boundaries of business practices, financial management, prudence and ethics.  


3. The Executive Director is authorized to establish all further operational policies, make all decisions, take all 


actions and develop all activities consistent with Board policies. If a question arises regarding the 


interpretation of Board Policies the Executive Director must consult with the Board. 


4. The Executive Director must provide information to the Board in sufficient detail to allow the Board to review, 


assess and provide feedback to the Executive Director in the specified policy areas, except for confidential 


member information. 


5. Except when a Board member or Board committee has been authorized by the Board as a whole to incur staff 


cost for the study of an issue; no director, officer or committee person has authority over the Executive 


Director. Information may be requested by these individuals or groups, but if such request, in an Executive 


Director’s judgement, requires a material amount of staff time or funds or is disruptive, it may be refused.  


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE:  


 


2. Monitoring and Ongoing Reporting from the Executive Director  


The purpose of monitoring and reporting is to: monitor the performance of ADRIA, compare the performance of 


ADRIA to the Ends, provide direction to the Executive Director and approval where required and make changes to 


the Ends where appropriate. 


1. Monitoring can occur as: 


a) Internal report: A report to the Board from the Executive Director in accordance with templates approved 


by the Board or specific requests from the Board and any additional reports deemed appropriate by the 


Executive Director.  


b) External report: A report from an independent third party who is selected by and reports directly to the 


Board. The information is gathered by a party who is selected by, and reports directly to the Board. Such 


reports must assess performance only against the Ends, Executive Director Limitations and policies 







Policy III: BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 13 


enacted by the Executive Director in furtherance of the Ends, not of the external party, unless the Board 


has previously indicated that party’s opinion is the standard. 


c) Direct inspection: Direct inspection by a Board member, a committee of the Board, or the Board as a 


whole. This is a direct inspection of ADRIA’s documents, activities, or circumstances which allow a 


“prudent person” test of achievement of the Ends and compliance with Executive Director Limitations and 


policies enacted by the Executive Director in furtherance of the Ends. 


2. Should a breached policy be disclosed through monitoring, the Executive Director must immediately provide 


the Board with a written report detailing the non-compliance and, if it has not already been corrected, a plan 


of action for correcting the breach complete with timelines or in the alternative suggestions and a request for 


feedback on potential changes to the Ends, Executive Director Limitations and policies enacted by the 


Executive Director in furtherance of the Ends. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


3. Communications and Counsel to the Board of Directors  


With respect to providing information and counsel to the Board of Directors (Board), the Executive Director must 


keep the Board informed. 


Accordingly, the Executive Director must: 


1. Ensure the Board is aware of relevant trends, anticipated adverse media coverage, significant external and 


internal changes in the Society, and the national body (Appropriate Dispute Resolution Institute of Canada – 


ADRIC). 


2. Provide the Board with a summary of any complaints to ADRIA. 


3. Submit the required monitoring in a timely, accurate way and with clear language; avoiding unnecessarily 


complex or lengthy form. 


4. Include as many staff and stakeholder points of view, issues and opinions as needed to fully inform the Board. 


5. Provide the communication vehicles for the Board, officers or committees to do their work. 


6. Deal with the Board as a whole except: 


a) fulfilling individual requests for information or 


b) when responding to officers or committees of the Board. 


7. Report actual or anticipated non-compliance with any Board policy. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2013 


MONITORING DATE: JANUARY 







Policy III: BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 14 


4. Executive Director Position Description  


The Executive Director’s position requires performance in three areas: 


1. Accomplishment of the Ends (Mission, Vision and Guiding Values – see Policy Type: I). 


2. Operation within the boundaries of the Executive Director Limitations (see Policy Type: II). 


3. Demonstrating competent performance in all the knowledge, skills and attributes necessary to successfully 


perform all the items listed in the job description of the Executive Director (the job skills). The Executive 


Director’s job description will be attached to this policy . 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


5. Performance Appraisal  


Appraising an Executive Director’s performance is synonymous with monitoring ADRIA’s performance. The purpose 


of a performance appraisal is to ensure the efforts of the Executive Director are synchronized with the broader 


organizational objectives, with the goal of optimizing the performance of the Executive Director and providing the 


board with feedback from the Executive Director on the actual performance of the organization and the overall 


environment in which the Executive Director is working. This appraisal is done by comparing Executive Director 


performance with the requirements of the Ends (see Policy Type: I), how the Executive Director’s performance 


stayed within the Executive Director Limitations (see Policy Type: II) and the Executive Director’s competencies in 


the job skills.  


APPRAISAL COMMITTEE 


1. The President or President’s designate and one member appointed by the Board no later than January in each 


year will be the Annual ED Performance Appraisal Committee. 


2. The committee will complete the appraisal process as outlined below and will provide an ED Appraisal report 


for Board consideration and approval. 


ANNUAL APPRAISAL 


1. The annual performance appraisal of the Executive Director must be completed prior to the AGM.  


2. The review process will include the following elements to support collection and sharing of appropriate 


information and generating constructive and open dialogue between the ED and the Committee: 


a. A comparison of the ED performance with the requirements of the Ends (see Policy Type: I) in a 


report completed by the ED 







Policy III: BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 15 


b. confirmation ED performance has stayed within the Executive Director Limitations (see Policy 


Type: II) in a report completed by the ED 


c. a review of the ED strengths and weaknesses in relationship to ED Deliverables, ADRIA Strategic 


Direction and ED Job Skills to be completed first, separately by the Committee and the ED, and 


then discussed. The review process will include: 


i. collecting and considering feedback from board and staff members as deemed 


appropriate by the Committee 


ii. A 360° feedback process as deemed appropriate by the Committee involving one or 


more of the following groups: Members, And volunteers, Peers & Partners in the ADR 


community. In order to avoid complexity, feedback will not be solicited from every 


group every year and may be solicited from only one group each year. 


FINALIZING AND APPROVING THE APPRAISAL 


1. The Committee will prepare a written report which will be shared and discussed with the ED. The 


Committee will submit a final written report for review and consideration by the Board. Upon ratification, 


this is the performance appraisal of the Executive Director. Should the Board choose to not ratify the 


report, they can direct such further actions as they deem appropriate 


2. Templates to support the appraisal process will be available in the Board’s electronic storage area. 


 


6. Executive Director Compensat ion Review 


1. Executive Director compensation reflects the current and appropriate salary based on the geographic and 


the society market. 


2. The Board determines the education, skills and core competencies required by an Executive Director of 


Adria and the appropriate market value and compensation. 


3. The regular setting of compensation does not preclude the Board recognizing extraordinary circumstances 


of Executive Director performance. 


4. The Appraisal Committee will conduct the compensation review which will include the following: 


a. a review of the current ED contract terms and conditions 


b. a review of the required ED position requirements and qualifications 


c. a review of comparable compensation benefits 


5. The Committee will engage the ED in this review process. The ED may be asked to assist in preparing the 


research for committee consideration.  


6. The Committee will negotiate a contract with the Executive Director to mutual satisfaction. 







Policy III: BOARD—EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 16 


7. The Committee will present recommendations to the Board regarding the Executive Director’s contract 


for the upcoming year with a proposed salary on an annual basis prior to the AGM. Upon ratification by 


the Board this will become the contract between ADRIA and the Executive Director. Should the Board 


choose not to ratify the contract, they can direct such further actions as they deem appropriate. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 17 


POLICY TYPE: IV BOARD WORK 


1. Board Job Description 


The role of the Board is to represent the members in achieving the Ends of ADRIA.  


Specifically the job description of the Board is: 


1. Linking to the members of ADRIA 


2. Writing and implementing policies that answer the questions: 


a) ENDS POLICIES:  What is ADRIA doing for whom and with what results? 


b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR LIMITATIONS: What are the limitations within which an Executive Director must 


work to implement the Ends? 


c) BOARD OF DIRECTORS-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RELATIONSHIPS:  How are responsibilities delegated to the 


Executive Director and how are these responsibilities monitored? 


d) BOARD WORK: What will the Board do and how will it manage itself? 


3. Ensuring Executive Director performance in relation to the accomplishment of the Ends within Executive 


Director Limitations and the job skills. 


4. Managing the Board through the Board policies, the Board calendar, Board budget and agendas. 


5. Participating in Advocacy, Membership and Revenue Generation activities as required and able. 


 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY??????????? 


 


2. Strategic Planning 


The Board works according to a planning cycle and the following outline when planning for the future. 


PREPARING TO BUILD 


 Historical Picture: How did we start and where have we been? 


 Owner Survey: What products and services do the members want?  


 Environmental Scan: What external forces affect us? (Economic, Political, Technological, etc.)  


 Organizational Assessment: Determining our internal strengths and weaknesses and the external 


opportunities and threats that impact us.  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 18 


STRENGTHENING THE FOUNDATION 


 Vision: The organizational dream—what the organization could be. 


 Mission and Outcomes: What the organization will do for people to achieve the vision. 


 Values:   The underlying beliefs, principles and philosophy that will guide our behaviour. 


DESIGNING A BLUEPRINT 


 Constitution: Statements of the raison d’être for the organization. 


 Bylaws: The set of rules by which the organization will operate which are approved by the members and 


governed by external legislation. 


 Strategic Plan: This is a three to five-year plan outlining the key directions, strategies and target outcomes 


adopted by the Board to achieve the Vision and fulfil the Mission.  


 Operational  Plan: The document developed by the Executive Director that reflects the strategic plan in a set 


of practical, 12-18 month goals and actions, responsibilities, resources and timelines. 


 The Budget:  Is developed to align resources with the directions of the Strategic Plan and Operational Plan.  


 


BUILDING A FRAMEWORK 


 Board Policies and Procedures: Values-based statements, policies and procedures for the operation of the 


Board. 


 Staff Policies and Procedures: Values-based statements, policies and procedures for operation for the Staff. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY, JUNE, AUGUST, NOVEMBER 


 


3. Linkage to Ownership 


The Board acts in trusteeship for membership and serves as the connection with the ADRIA members. 


Legal Ownership: The members of ADRIA. 


Moral Ownership: The members of the public who benefit from the services of members. 


The Board links to the ownership in the following ways: 


1. Attitude 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 19 


The first level of obligation is attitude:  Directors act on the belief that they are trustees for the owners. The Board 


takes into account all appropriate considerations, loyalties and leadership in its discussions. 


2. Statistics 


At a second level, the Board gathers statistical evidence of the members’ concerns, needs and demographic 


information. 


3. Information  


The third level engages the Board in information gathering such as: 


 reviewing articles in the media for appropriate trends 


 presentations at Board meetings by appropriate people 


 dialogue with other Boards or public officials 


 other community input 


4. The Board will spend regular time in its meetings discussing and deciding issues of membership. 


5. The Board has a role in member complaints. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


4. Complaints 


IMPLEMENTATION 


In dealing with a written (formal) complaint: 


 


1. Board member receives a written complaint. 


2. Discuss complaint with President to determine if there is a potential Board policy violation. 


3. Issue of complaint DOES indicate a potential violation of Board policy. 


a) Advise Executive Director of complaint (courtesy). 


b) Write to complainant describing process: 


i. Potentially Involves Board policy 


ii. Will be discussed at next Board meeting (date) 


c) Include in agenda of next Board meeting. 


d) Discuss at Board meeting 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 20 


i. Is  there a Board policy violation 


ii. What is the appropriate remedy 


iii. Should policy be changed. 


a. YES: Board revises affected policies 


b. NO: No action 


e) After Board meeting, Executive Director sends another letter to complainant. 


i. Recount original issue  


ii. Describe Board decision 


-OR- 


4. Issue of complaint DOES NOT involve Board policy. 


a) Pass complaint to the Executive Director for handling 


b) Write to complainant describing process: 


i. Does not involve Board policy 


ii. Was passed to an Executive Director for decision 


c) Include in agenda of next Board meeting. 


i. Information only–no action 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY  


 


5. Best Practices of Policy-Based Governance 


The Board adheres to the best practices of policy-based governance and commits to its use according to the 


following 10 principles: 


1. The Members are represented in the Society by the Board. Boards exist to oversee the organization on behalf 


of all members. They are answerable to all members. 


2. Ends determination is the pivotal duty of Board work. Any organization can justify its existence by showing 


the difference it can make. The results of an organization are the reasons for its existence. 


3. Board decisions should mainly be policy decisions. Policy is defined as a statement that underlies action.  


4. Boards should formulate policy by determining the broad values before progressing to the more narrow 


ones. A large policy will contain smaller related policies.  


5. Boards should define and delegate, rather than react and ratify. Setting criteria and then allowing them to be 


applied by staff is preferable to approving staff plans. A focused monitoring system for checking relevant 


criteria should be instituted. 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 21 


6. The Board speaks with one voice or not at all. On a given issue the Board must have a single voice. The power 


of the Board is not as individuals, but as a group, an entity entrusted with the authority to govern the 


organization. Within the Board open and wide-ranging discussion is encouraged. Then, once the Board makes 


a decision, all Board members must speak with one voice. 


7. The Board’s best control over its staff is to limit, not to prescribe. The distinction between ends and means 


will enable the Board to free itself from trivia, to delegate clearly, and to turn its attention to the larger issues 


of results to be achieved.  


8. The Board must forge a link with its Executive Director that is empowering, safe and collegial. The 


relationship between the Board and the Executive Director of the organization is the most important. There 


must be limits, and checks and balances, so that the Board does not abdicate its responsibilities. 


9. The performance of the Executive Director must be monitored against policy criteria. Monitoring is 


necessary to enable the Board to get on with planning for the future. 


10. The Board must design its own products and process. The Board decides what it expects of itself, (i.e. how 


the Board will conduct itself and perform its job). 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


6. Governing Style 


The Board agrees to adhere to a style of Board work with vision rather than an internal preoccupation; 


encouraging diversity in viewpoints and strategic leadership more than administrative detail; with a clear 


distinction of Board and staff roles; collective rather than individual decisions; taking a long-range rather than past 


or present perspective and acting proactively rather than reactively. 


As a corporate body the Board will: 


1. Operate in all ways mindful of its obligation to the owners of the Society – the members of ADRIA. 


2. Enforce upon itself and the members whatever discipline is needed to govern with excellence. Discipline will 


apply to attendance, the principles of policy-making, respect of roles, speaking with one voice and abiding by 


all Board policies. 


3. Direct, control and inspire the Society through carefully establishing the broadest values and perspectives 


through policies. 


4. Focus chiefly on intended long term impacts on the world outside the Society (the Ends), not on the 


administration or programmatic means of attaining those effects. 


5. Be an initiator of policy, not merely a reactor to staff initiatives. The Board, not the Executive Director will be 


responsible for Board performance. 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 22 


6. Use the expertise of individual members to enhance the ability of the Board as a body to make wise policy, 


rather than substitute their individual values for the group’s values. 


7. Delegate to the Governance Committee the responsibility to review the Board’s own process and 


performance.  


8. Direct the Governance Committee to ensure the excellence of its governance capability by setting regular time 


on the meeting agenda for Board learning.  


9. Empower the Chair of the Governance Committee to serve as the champion of the Board governing style.  


10. Maintain confidentiality in all Board discussions. 


As an individual each director will: 


11. Know and act on the Vision, Mission, Mission Outcomes and Guiding Values. 


12. Demonstrate an understanding of the bylaws.  


13. Ensure that there is a strategic plan for the organization and expect that there is an operational plan in place 


written by the Executive Director and staff. 


14. Be proactive in soliciting and implementing member and other stakeholder opinions. 


15. Prepare, attend and intelligently participate in all Board meetings. 


16. Continue to learn as individuals and encourage learning throughout the organization. 


17. Abide by a written code of conduct in all Board work. 


18. Demonstrate integrity as a trustee of organizational values. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


7. Director Code of Conduct 


ADRIA has an active Board that sets the Society’s vision, mission, strategic direction, and policies; and has oversight 


of its finances and operations. The Board ensures that its members and the staff act for the benefit of ADRIA and 


its public purpose with integrity and honesty; that ADRIA resources are responsibly and prudently managed; and 


that ADRIA has the capacity to carry out its programs effectively. The Board also hires, supervises, evaluates, and 


determines appropriate compensation for the Executive Director. 


As a director, I hereby agree to: 


 Act honestly and in good faith, with the best interest of ADRIA foremost in mind; 


 Use the degree of skill and diligence that is expected of my personal knowledge and experience;  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 23 


 Be loyal to ADRIA and endorse and support the Vision, Mission, Mission Outcomes and Guiding Values of 


ADRIA; 


 Comply with all applicable laws and regulations of Alberta and the ADRIA bylaws; 


 Treat other directors, members and staff fairly and with respect; 


 Disclose promptly and fully every personal conflict of interest to ADRIA;  


 Maintain confidentiality of confidential information learned while performing director duties; and 


 Participate in ADRIA as authorized in the bylaws, by Board Policies or by the full Board. 


 


Director Name (please print) ___________________________ 


Director Signature ___________________________________ 


Date Signed ________________________________________ 


IMPLEMENTATION 


Each director will sign the Director Code of Conduct as commitment to the Code. This will be filed at the office. 


The Board will: 


 Distribute this Code to potential directors 


 Incorporate this Code into its Board Policies 


 Review the Code with new directors and in Board orientation 


DISCIPLINE OF BOARD MEMBERS 


If a director is negligent in carrying out his or her duties, then, given that the Board has the right to make and 


enforce its own laws and discipline an offender, the following guidelines will be followed: 


 Offending directors may be questioned by the President to ascertain the breach. 


 Offending directors may be censured by the President with a letter being sent to the director outlining the 


circumstances, the breach and the corrective actions. 


 If the offending director is the President, the Vice President initiates and carries through this process. 


 Continued offence will result in a motion of censure being brought in a motion to the Board. This motion 


may result in a voluntary withdrawal or upon a vote of the majority; the director can be removed from 


committee leadership and membership. 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 24 


 Continued offence by a director will result in removal from office by a resolution as prescribed in the 


bylaws. 


 In circumstances of an extreme nature the director will be removed from office immediately in 


accordance with the bylaws. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


8. Best Practices in Writing Policies  


The Board commits to the seven principles of writing policies: 


1. Structure follows function 


2. Division of labour 


3. Well-defined relationships 


4. Effective implementation 


5. Values-based 


6. Congruent with foundational documents  


7. Plainly written 


According to these principles, the ADRIA Board commits to the following best practises: 


 Every policy is directly connected to a stated organizational value. 


 Wording is clear, appropriate to the organization, and written in plain language. The roles, responsibilities and 


accountabilities of every relationship are clearly described. 


 Procedures are added to make implementation of policies easy to use. 


 Orientation to the use of policies is done thoroughly and regularly. 


 Review of the use of policies is done regularly. 


 All policies are consistent with all other ADRIA governing documents. 


 The Board writes and applies those policies that have to do with all that the Board does as a corporate body 


and as individual directors; the expectations of the Executive Director, the delegation of duties from the Board 


to the Executive Director and the relationship of the Board to those people the organization serves. 


 The staff write policies dealing with all operations and that define the roles, responsibilities and relationships 


of all staff and stakeholders with whom the staff work. 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 25 


 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


9. Board Role in Advocacy 


The Board’s primary function is to define results. As such the Board ensures the worthiness of ADRIA for advocacy 


rather than organizing specific activities. 


Purpose of the Policy: 


1. Board directors will support the lobbying efforts of ADRIA by networking and communicating on behalf of the 


Society. 


2. Directors may be required by their position to participate in lobbying efforts of ADRIA. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


10. Board Role in Revenue Generation 


The Board’s primary function is to define results. As such, the Board ensures the worthiness of ADRIA for revenue 


generation rather than coordination of specific revenue generation activities. 


1. Directors will support the revenue generation efforts of ADRIA by networking to position ADRIA for successful 


revenue generation. 


2. Directors will support revenue generation personally through paying a membership fee, attending 


membership activities and supporting ADRIA events. 


3. Directors may contribute to revenue generation areas (donations, sales of membership, tickets to events and 


recruiting of others) in accordance with their experience and available time. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 26 


11. Board Planning and Agendas 


Board meetings are for the single task of getting the Board’s job done. The Board takes responsibility for its own 


meeting agendas. 


The Board meeting will include: 


1. Agenda Control:  The Board has sole authority over its own agenda. The President will exercise this control on 


behalf of the Board, though any director – with a majority agreeing – can add or delete business from the 


agenda. Material related to the agenda will be given to Board members with adequate lead time for 


preparation. 


2. Agenda Content:  Only those matters which are within the Board’s chosen areas of responsibility (see Board 


Job Description) will take up the Board agenda. The Board will work only on the Board’s job, not the staff’s 


work. This includes: Ends Policy discussion, Strategic Planning, Executive Director monitoring, Links to the 


membership, Board Learning, Committee Reports and matters of Governance and  Policy. 


3. Directors are obligated to prepare for meetings and to participate productively in discussion, always within the 


boundaries of discipline established by the Board. 


4. Timelines: 


 Minutes will be sent by the Board Secretary to all directors within four weeks. 


 Agendas are sent by the President and Executive Director to all directors 4 days prior to the Board 


meeting 


 All agenda items and information are sent 7 days prior to the Board meeting to the Executive Director or 


his or her delegate, who will gather all the related materials and post the material on-line. 


5. All directors must ensure they have access to the agenda, minutes and other information prior to and at the 


meeting. 


IMPLEMENTATION  


The Board Agenda, Board Calendar and Board Budget are the responsibility of the President to implement. The 


template for these will be posted on-line. 


 


12. The Board Budget 


While the overall budget of ADRIA is the responsibility of the Executive Director (subject to the oversight of the 


Board as stated in these policies), the Board retains ultimate responsibility for its own budget. The Board 


recognizes that their position of authority makes prudent financial management of the Board budget essential.  


Revenue: A transfer from operational monies. The Board is not expected to generate its own revenue. 


Expenditures: Listed so as to fit with the financial plan. Includes expenses for Board responsibilities such as: 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 27 


 Board Orientation 


 Strategic Planning 


 Board Learning 


 Link to the Membership 


 Policy Review 


 Executive Director recognition. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY, JUNE, AUGUST, NOVEMBER 


 


13. Board Expense Claims 


It is the preference of ADRIA that Board members are supported by their employers.  


Directors serve without remuneration.  


Reasonable expenses incurred are reimbursed in compliance with Board approved policy. ADRIA does not want 


Board directors to be out-of-pocket for Board expenses. 


1. Director expenses are parking, mileage, conference costs, meals and any other expenses with prior approval 


from the Board.  


2. All claims are submitted within 30 days of expenditure. 


3. All claims are submitted within 30 days of fiscal year end. 


4. All claims are submitted on the ADRIA Board Claim form which is posted on-line. 


5. Claims are submitted to the Executive Director or his or her delegate for review and payment. 


 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 28 


14. President’s Role  


The job of the President is mainly the integrity of the Board and its work and to represent the Board to outside 


stakeholders.  


Integrity of the Board 


 The role of the President is to see the Board’s performance is consistent with the Board’s policies and 


those legitimately imposed upon it from outside the society. 


 The Board meeting agenda will include only those issues which, according to Board policy, clearly belong 


to the Board and are marked on the Board calendar. 


 The Board’s work will be conducted in an efficient, timely, fair and orderly manner. 


 Roberts Rules of Order are observed during the formal business portions of Board meetings. The 


President can suspend Roberts Rules temporarily and facilitate discussion and brainstorming when 


appropriate. 


Representation 


 The President is the only Board member authorized to speak for the Board other than in specified 


instances as authorized by the Board or the President.  


 The authority of the President consists only in making decisions on behalf of the Board which fall within 


and are consistent with a reasonable interpretation of Board policies. 


 The President has no authority to make new decisions about policies created by the Board. 


 The President will chair all Member and Board meetings with all the commonly accepted powers and 


responsibilities of that position.  


 The President represents the Board to the Executive Director in announcing Board-stated positions and in 


stating Presidential decisions and interpretation within the area delegated to them. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 29 


15. Officers’ Roles  


1. The Officers of ADRIA are named in the bylaws: President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. 


2. The current bylaws list the responsibilities of these Officers. 


3. The Officers are elected to serve the membership by ensuring that certain legal responsibilities of the Societies 


Act are met.  


4. Officers, other than the President, have no responsibility or authority to supervise the Executive Director or 


staff. 


5. The Officers are the Executive Committee with authority to make emergency decisions on behalf of the Board 


as outlined in the Terms of Reference.  


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012  /MARCH 4, 2011 


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


16. Board Committees 


The Board may establish committees to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities. 


1. Committees of the Board must be created by the Board. 


2. Committees of the Board may speak or act for the Board only when the authority to do so has been 


specifically granted by the Board.  


3. Committees of the Board exist to advise the Board in its deliberations. Mandates may include preparation of 


policy alternatives and implications, bylaw review, audit, nominations and elections or any other part of the 


Board job description. 


4. The relationship between either the Executive Director or the staff of the Society and a committee of the 


Board will be determined by the Board. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


IMPLEMENTATION: TERMS OF REFERENCE 


1. When the Board strikes a committee, it will determine the following: 


 Name of the Committee 


 Task(s) of the Committee 


 Duration of the Committee (both beginning and end) 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 30 


 Chair of the Committee 


 Committee membership 


 Requirements of the Committee for Executive Director/Staff time 


 Budget requirements 


 Alocated staff or other resources 


 Reporting obligations 


2. Further details such as membership responsibilities and timelines may be required in the first report to the 


Board by the Board. 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012   


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


17. New Director Orientation 


All new directors, whether elected or appointed, will be oriented to the Board as part of the nomination and 


appointment process. 


The purpose of orientation is to acquaint the director with ADRIA, the Board, and the responsibilities of an 


individual director. While orientation should be considered an ongoing process, there are certain critical points and 


information that should be highlighted.  


Types of Orientation 


There are three types or levels of orientation: 


 Orientation to ADRIA 


 Orientation to the Board 


 Orientation to the individual role of the director. 


Orientation to ADRIA will cover the following: 


 The organization chart of ADRIA  


 The broad general scope of ADRIA, including the Vision, Mission, and Guiding Values. 


 The history and services of ADRIA  


 The roles, relationships and structure of each level of ADRIA  and the relationship to ADRIC 


 The bylaws of ADRIA. 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 31 


 A summary of current members and issues. 


A Board manual will contain this information. This manual will be available to new directors immediately following 


their election or appointment. 


Orientation to the Board will cover all Board policies 


Orientation to the Individual role of Director will cover the following: 


 Legal responsibilities of directors 


 The code of conduct for directors 


 Participation requirements for meetings 


 Claim process for Board expenses 


New director orientation will be done prior to the first Board meeting the new director attends. 


Some orientation topics may require attendance of directors at a separate orientation.  


A new director buddy system may be implemented at the will of the President. 


All directors, whether new or experienced, are expected to attend the annual Board orientation. 


 


18. Board Evaluation 


At least annually, the Board will set aside part of a Board meeting to discuss and monitor the Board’s own 


progress. The responsibility for this initiative and for ensuring a fair, balanced discussion rests with the Governance 


Committee.  


The Board Calendar will note the annual review. 


 


19. Policy Review 


The Board will regularly review all policies asking itself the following of each policy: 


 Is this policy still needed? 


 Is this policy being followed? 


 Are there any changes necessary to this policy? 


The Board will use this policy review time to edit and update policies. 


 







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 32 


DATE APPROVED/REVISED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012  /MARCH 4, 2011 


MONITORING DATE: FEBRUARY 


 


20. Glossary of Terms 


Ends – the results sought by the board in the areas of Vision, Mission, and Guiding Values. This includes the 


strategic direction, identity, continuity, progress, and governance style. 


Means – the method or way of achieving the ends. 


Limitations – restrictions or boundaries of authority placed on the Executive Director, which can place a positive 


 obligation on the Executive Director. 


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 33 


ATTACHMENT – ED JOB DESCRIPTION  


ADRIA Executive Director Job Description 


 


Position Summary: 


The Executive Director is the chief operating officer of ADRIA and has responsibility and authority to 
direct day to day operations. This includes managing programs services, financial, staff and volunteer 
resources using ADRIA’s Vision, Mission and Guiding Values as a guide and reference.  The Executive 
Director holds a key leadership position in the organization and attends Board meetings; provides support 
to and is a consultant to the Board. The Executive Director implements Board Policy. The Executive 
Director receives direction from the Board through the President. 


Key Responsibilities:  


 


1. Board Support  


o Identifies key issues for board deliberations and develops agendas for board 
meetings in consultation with the President. 


o Ensures materials that facilitate board analysis of issues and decision making are 
provided for board meetings in a complete and timely manner. 


o Oversees appropriate\required organizational documentation and records of 
board meetings in accordance with the Societies Act, Bylaws and Board Policy. 


o Tracks recommended board actions and facilitates progress reports to the board. 


o Attends meetings of the Board of Directors, and provides support to Board 
Committees and Sub-Committees  as needed (in an advisory capacity)  


o Ensures administrative supports are provided to facilitate the Board’s work. 


2. Policy Management: 


o Manages the day-to-day operation of ADRIA 


o Implements, and monitors policies determined by the board and develops related 
procedures as appropriate  


o Directs the staff’s implementation of policy  


 


3. Strategic Planning  


o Assists the ADRIA Board and Executive Committee in the  strategic planning 
process  


o Conducts internal\external environmental scans to support planning  


o Participates with the Board in creating and updating the strategic plan (Vision, 
Mission, Mission Outcomes and Guiding Values.)  


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 34 


 


4. Operational Planning and Budget Development  


o Develops, follows and adjusts an operational plan to achieve the strategic plan 
which will : 


o describe how ADRIA will achieve its mission in the time period of the plan  


o includes operational goals, implementation activities, performance measures,  


o include a supporting budget to match resource achievement with the plan 


o Provides clear, concise reports to the board at each scheduled board meeting 
that assesses the accomplishment of the plan. 


5. Risk Analysis 


Evaluate the threats and opportunities for ADRIA by accurately reading 
organizational\ external realities and understanding the forces shaping the views of 
clients \partners\members.   Makes or recommends actions to address them:  


o Evaluates potential assets and liabilities of a project, proposal, or strategy  


o Assesses threats to the organizations image 


o Assesses risks to the organizations financial security and growth  


o Provides regular, reliable and comparable reports on the organization’s progress  


6. Financial Management  


o Implements the board’s policies for the allocation and distribution of resources 


o Administers the funds of the organization (within the approved budget) 


o Maintains sound, industry accepted bookkeeping and accounting procedures  


o Provides the Treasurer\Board with regular statements of revenues and 
expenditures  


7. Program Management: 


o Facilitates the research, planning, development, implementation and evaluation 
of ADRIA programs and services  


o Ensures programs\services meet policy guidelines and reflect board priorities 


o Fosters effective\collaborative relationships with current\potential program 
partners 


o Applies sound practices in negotiation and determination of contractual 
arrangements (value, accountability, risk, etc.)   


  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 35 


 


8. Human Resources Management  


Develops an organizational structure\human resources strategy to effectively 
achieve organizational plans and goals. Ensures up to date job 
descriptions\employment contracts\volunteer role descriptions are maintained.   


Staffing 


o Develops and implements personnel policies. 


o Recruits , hires, trains, develops, releases staff \service providers  


o Interprets Board policies to staff\service providers 


o Works with staff to set  clear, results-oriented goals\outcomes; coaches and 
monitors performance and evaluates staff \service providers annually  


o Recommends a salary and benefits budget to the Executive Committee. (?) 


Volunteers: 


o Provides leadership in identifying opportunities for volunteer involvement in 
ADRIA   


o Supervises the recruitment, selection, orientation and training of service 
volunteers  and develops and implements appropriate policies to support 
volunteer engagement 


9. Advocacy Management 


o Promotes community\public awareness of the organization’s mission and aims 


o Participates in networking and community relations activities on behalf of the 
organization  


o Seeks out mutually beneficial relationships  


o Builds strong working relationships with others –  inside and outside the 
organization and enlists their support when appropriate 


 


Qualifications and Competencies  


Education 


Post-secondary degree or certification in a related field or an equivalent combination of education and 
working experience. 


Experience 


Minimum of 3-5 years of management experience preferably with a not for profit organization in a related 
area (professional\membership organization for example)  


Solid experience relating to: 


o supervising and planning the activities of others (staff\ volunteers\contractors)  


o development and administration of budgets  







GLOSSARY OF TERMS 


ADRIA Board Policies 2014 Page | 36 


o strategic and operational plan development and implementation 


o developing business and strategic relationships  


o organizational leadership  


Experience with professional membership development and\or the operation of educational programs in 
post-secondary institutions is an asset.  


 


Knowledge/Skills\Abilities 


 


 Understanding of and support for the field of appropriate dispute resolution; the 
ability to be a credible representative of the organization and to gain the respect of 
ADRIA members and stakeholders 


 Ability to work effectively with a Board of Directors and understand the role and 
responsibilities of a policy board.  


 Strong organizational skills including the ability to effectively priorize activities 


 Strong interpersonal; collaborative and team-building skills  - can  guide the 
performance of others while holding them accountable 


 Results orientated – can take a leadership role while effectively engaging others  


 Confident in working in a variety of forums – community, government, legal, 
academic, corporate.  


 A proven track record in building partnerships 


 Ability to understand and work effectively with budgets and financial documents 


 Ability to think strategically and see the  present in the context of longer term goals 


 Solid written and verbal communication skills including public speaking and the 
ability to write clear and concise reports and documents.  


 Ability to draft agreements, policies and related organizational documents 


 Sufficient knowledge and interest in using computer technology to support business 
communications;  document and data base development and to understand and 
explore technology options for the delivery of programs and services   


 Ability to challenge the status quo - acknowledge the need for change and 
willingness to learn about new approaches and processes. 


 Ability to work independently, exercise sound judgment and make decisions within a 
broad policy frame of reference.  


 


APPROVED:  April 23, 2013 








From: ADR Institute of Canada / Institut d’Arbitrage et de Médiation du Canada 


[mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 07, 2015 3:56 PM 


To: Smith, Charles /J 
Subject: 2015 Call for Nominations: Lionel J. McGowan Awards of Excellence in Dispute Resolution / Prix 


d’Excellence à la Mémoire de L.J. McGowan - Demande des nominations pour 2015 


 


[Cannot see this email? Click here for web version] 
[Vous ne pouvez pas voir ce courriel? Cliquez ici pour la version web] 


 


2015 Call for Nominations:  
Lionel J. McGowan Awards of Excellence in Dispute Resolution   


 
Prix d’Excellence à la Mémoire de Lionel J. McGowan - 


Demande des nominations pour 2015 
 


 


(le français suit, voir ci-dessous) 


  
The ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. is calling for nominees for the Lionel J. McGowan Awards of Excellence 
in Dispute Resolution.  
  


The awards are named in recognition and honour of Lionel J. McGowan, the first Executive Director of the 
Arbitrators’ Institute of Canada.  
  


The presentation of the McGowan Awards will take place at the ADRIC’s Conference to be held in Calgary 
on October 28-30, 2015. There are two awards: one which recognizes outstanding contribution to the 


support, development and success of the ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. and/or development of alternative 
dispute resolution nationally and one which recognizes contribution to a Regional Affiliate and within a 
Region.  
  


Regional Award of Excellence  


This award is for an individual who has made an outstanding contribution to the development and success 
of the Regional Affiliate of the ADR Institute of Canada, either by a short-term exceptional effort or through 
constant contributions over a long period of time, or has contributed significantly to the promotion and 
development of ADR within the region. (Note that simply being a member for many years, being on a board 
or committee for many years, or carrying out one’s own ADR practice do not apply toward the award.) 
  


National Award of Excellence  


This award is similar to the Regional award, but given for contributions to the ADR Institute of Canada. A 
candidate’s contributions to the support, development and/or progress of the ADR Institute of Canada and 
its policies and programs, and to promotion of ADR on a national scale, would be relevant. (Professional 
ADR teaching, hearing ADR cases and other ADR practice activities do not qualify. Similarly, simply being 
on the Board of the ADR Institute of Canada does not qualify unless it included major contributions to the 
Institute through development of the Institute’s structure, National-Regional relationships, national programs 
or materials, funding, or other significant Institute initiatives.) 
  


Deadline 


Nominations will be accepted until Friday, September 11, 2015. You are encouraged to submit 
nominations at any time prior to this date. Please send nominations in the form of a letter explaining 
why you feel your nominee should be recognized, to: 
  



mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca

http://www.icontact-archive.com/vOqCY89My5Vs3TM30WOHPgfF1IdTC0Oj?w=4

http://www.icontact-archive.com/vOqCY89My5Vs3TM30WOHPgfF1IdTC0Oj?w=4





McGowan Nominations Committee  


ADR Institute of Canada, Inc. 
234 Eglinton Ave. E., Suite 405 


Toronto, Ontario M4P 1K5 


Fax: 416-487-4429 


admin@adrcanada.ca 
  


For past Award winners, please visit: 
http://www.adrcanada.ca/about/index.cfm 
  


  


L’Institut d’Arbitrage et de Médiation du Canada cherche des nominations pour le Prix d’Excellence en 
Résolution Extrajudiciaire de Disputes. 
  


Le prix est accordé en honneur et en reconnaissance de Lionel J. McGowan, le premier Directeur exécutif 
de l’Institut d’Arbitrage du Canada, une des organisations fondatrices de l’Institut d’Arbitrage et de 
Médiation du Canada. 
  


La présentation se fera lors de la Conférence de l’IAMC à Calgary, Alberta, les 28-30 octobre 2015. 
  
Deux prix sont décernés lors de la présentation : l’un en raison des contributions à l’Institut et au domaine 
au niveau national, et l’autre, en raison des contributions au niveau régional. 
  
Prix d’Excellence Régional 


Ce prix est décerné à celui ou celle-ci qui a contribué au développement et au succès d’un Institut régional 
d’une façon incomparable, soit par son effort remarquable à court terme, ou par sa contribution constante 
sur une longue période et qui a contribué de façon significative à la promotion et/ou au développement de 
la PRD au sein de la région. (Il faut noter que, payer ses frais pour plusieurs années, siéger sur un comité 
ou un Conseil d’administration pour plusieurs années, et avoir sa propre pratique de PRD avec 
rémunération, ne comptent pas envers un prix.) 
  
Prix d’Excellence National 


Ce prix est semblable au prix régional, mais est décerné en raison des contributions à l’Institut National. 
Les contributions du candidat à l’appui, le développement, et/ou le progrès de l’Institut d’Arbitrage et de 
Médiation du Canada, Inc. et ses politiques et programmes, et de promouvoir la PRD au niveau national, 
sont pertinent. (Enseigner la PRD professionnellement, écouter aux cas de PRD, et d’autres activités de la 
pratique de la PRD, ne comptent pas. En plus, étant sur le Conseil d’administration de l’Institut national ne 
compterait pas, à moins que ça incluse des contributions majeures à l’Institut à travers le développement 
de la structure de l’Institut, des relations régionales-nationales, des programmes ou matériaux nationaux, 
du financement, ou d’autres initiatives significatives de l’Institut.) 
  


Date de soumission  
La date limite pour recevoir les nominations est vendredi le 11 septembre 2015. Nous vous 
encourageons de soumettre vos nominations dès que possible, avec une lettre indiquant pourquoi votre 
candidat(e) devrait être reconnu, au : 
  


Comité des Nominations McGowan 


Institut d’Arbitrage et de Médiation du Canada, Inc. 
234, rue Eglinton est, bureau 405 


Toronto (Ontario) M4P 1K5 


Téléc. : 416-487-4429 admin@adrcanada.ca 
  


Pour nos lauréats du prix d'excellence, visitez :  
http://www.adrcanada.ca/francais/about/index.cfm 


  


 



mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca?subject=Nomination%20for%20McGowan%20Award

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.adrcanada.ca%2Fabout%2Findex.cfm

mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca?subject=Nominations%20McGowan

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.adrcanada.ca%2Ffrancais%2Fabout%2Findex.cfm





  
ADR Institute of Canada 
405-234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733  fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 


www.adrcanada.ca 


  


        
 


   


 


This message was sent to smith.chuck@syncrude.com from: 


ADR Institute of Canada / Institut d’Arbitrage et de Médiation du Canada, admin@adrcanada.ca, ADR Institute of 


Canada | 234 Eglinton Ave. East, Suite 405 | Toronto, ON M4P 1K5, Canada 


Unsubscribe  
 



http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.adrcanada.ca

mailto:smith.chuck@syncrude.com

mailto:admin@adrcanada.ca

http://app.icontact.com/icp/mmail-mprofile.pl?r=8913674&l=12323&s=S278&m=234165&c=1303577

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http://www.facebook.com/ADRInstituteOfCanadaADRIC.IAMC

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid%3D3303518

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http://twitter.com/ADRCanada

http://click.icptrack.com/icp/relay.php?r=8913674&msgid=234165&act=S278&c=1303577&destination=http://www.youtube.com/channel/UCwA2kIDn6cqf2oUFxzYiN8A






ADR Institute of Alberta Name:


Address: 7128 Ada Boulevard Address:
Room CE223A Ralph King Athletic Centre


Edmonton, AB  T5B 4E4


Telephone: (780) 433-4881 / 1-800-232-7214


Fax: (780) 433-9024


Email: board@adralberta.com


Date Description and/or Reason for Expense Km Km Rate Parking Travel Meals Hotel Other Incidentals GST LINE TOTAL


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


-$          -$            


TOTAL -$            


UpdatedUpdated 


March 2015


2015 Board Expense Report & Policy


CLAIMANT


DATE:________________________________


SIGNATURE:___________________________


Payment APPROVAL (for ADRIA admin)


NAME:_______________________________


DATE:________________________________


SIGNATURE:___________________________


Expenses should be reasonable and prudent, and should reflect your actual expenditures, including taxes and tips. For 
reference only, the 2015 federal government maximum amounts payable for meals and incidentals are:


Breakfast: $ 15.75
Lunch $ 16.35
Dinner: $ 42.20
Meal allowance total: $ 74.30
Incidental allowance:  $ 17.30
Daily Total meals and incidentals:            $ 91.60


Personal vehicle KM Rate: $  0.45  
Alcohol purchases are not claimable.
Claims are to be submitted within 30 days of travel or expense.


Directors, by virtue of their position, are permitted to make travel 
arrangements that best suit their professional schedules and 
commitments. Prior approval is not required. 
Directors are encouraged to incur expenses that are reasonable, 
prudent and defendable to our membership. Car pooling is encouraged, 
and the use of commercial air should be kept to a minimum. When 
circumstances dictate a higher than normal expense, it is recommended 
that the President and/or ED be advised by email. Hotels and some 
meals will normally be booked and paid for by ADRIA staff.
Claim form must be signed.  Your signature certifies that expenses are 
accurately recorded and were legitimately incurred on ADRIA 
business.



mailto:board@adralberta.com#






 


CAL_LAW\ 2264719\1  


PROPOSED RESOLUTION 


That the following amendment be made to the By-Laws of the ADR Institute of Alberta: 


1. That Article 5.56 “Voting” be amended as follows: 


A resolution is valid as if passed at a Board meeting and effective as of and from the stated 


effective date of the resolution in the following circumstances: 


1. The resolution is in writing and signed in one or more counterparts; or 


2. The resolution is presented for, and voted on, by e-mail provided that each Board 


 member signifies that he or she consents to such electronic voting. 


 








 
Below is the listing of members who haven't renewed for the dates from: 1/1/2015 to 1/31/2015. To edit a member, 
click on 'Edit'. 


 
 
Inactive accounts have a grey background. 


Last Name First Name Primary Email Phone # Memb. Type Options 


     
Edit 


Craig John craigj@bennettjones.com 
Will take a three year leave Jan 
2015)  


Full  Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


     
Edit 


 


 


 
Below is the listing of members who haven't renewed for the dates from: 2/1/2015 to 2/28/2015. To edit a member, click on 'Edit'. 


 
 
Inactive accounts have a grey background. 


Last Name First Name Primary Email Phone # Memb. Type 


     
Burns Marilyn marilynburnsllb@yahoo.ca 780-803-3403 Ext  Full  


Dawson Larry dawlar@sasktel.net 780-691-7670 Ext  Full  


     


     


     


     
 
 
 


    


     


     


     


      


 


 
Below is the listing of members who haven't renewed for the dates from: 3/1/2015 to 3/31/2015. To edit a member, 
click on 'Edit'. 


 



http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9387

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9713

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9897

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=7359

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9716

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9720

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=7971

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9892

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9592

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9717

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9586

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9065

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9723

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9089

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9722

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9731

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9726

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9096

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=8170

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=8202

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9724

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9528

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9079





 
Inactive accounts have a grey background. 


Last Name First Name Primary Email Phone # Memb. Type Options 


Brooks Daniel danbrooksbc@gmail.com 250-944-0435 Ext  Full  Edit 


Callihoo Dennis denlaw@telusplanet.net 587-524-0180 Ext  Full  Edit 


Del Colle Michele jmr1@telus.net 780-218-2880 Ext  Full  Edit 


Erickson Tara tarae356@gmail.com 780-993-2639 Ext  Full  Edit 


Frigault Lise info@frigaultlaw.com 780-757-8041 Ext  Full  Edit 


Gaunt Lisa lgaunt@fieldlaw.com 403-260-8525 Ext  Full  Retired from firm 


Kuzik Jane janekuzik@shaw.ca 403-678-5930 Ext  Full  Edit 


McRae Lynn lynn.mcrae@rlchambers.ca 403-930-7995 Ext  Full  Edit 


Pappas Vasilis pappasv@bennettjones.com 403-298-3068 Ext  Full  Edit 


Porter Michael sailwithmikep@gmail.com 403-286-1988 Ext  Full  Edit 


Seaman Brian info@brianseamanagency.com 587-353-0083 Ext  Full  
Will renew later in 


April 


Strilchuk Paula paula.strilchuk@genesisbuildersgroup.com 403-265-9237 Ext  Full  Edit 


Young Rhonda ryoung@mcsnet.ca 780-645-5250 Ext  Full  Edit 


 


 



http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9653

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9464

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=7107

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9024

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9193

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=7747

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9752

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9744

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=8296

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9754

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=8666

http://adralberta.com/manage/member-edit.asp?ID=9736






 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 1 of 12 
 


ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 
Interim Complaint Resolution Policy  


Revision 3.2 April 2015  
 


Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to address, in an open and transparent fashion, all 
concerns, disputes and complaints that may arise regarding ADRIA functions, its 
governance, or the professional conduct of its members.   
 
The ADR Institute of Canada (ADRIC) provides details regarding the Institute’s 
Code of Ethics, the Code of Conduct for Mediators, and its Complaints & Discipline 
Policy at www.adrcanada.ca  


 


Applicable to: 
 
A complaint under this policy may be made verbally or in writing by any ADRIA 
member, or by any member of the public, noting that: 


 


 Internal ADRIA staff complaints, including complaints raised by those 
internally contracted to ADRIA, involving compensation, performance, 
interpersonal relations or HR issues are NOT addressed through this policy, 
although similar principles will apply; 


 Complaints arising out of the Society’s affairs or the application of its 
bylaws, involving disputes between Society members, recent members, 
Directors and/or Officers, will be resolved in accordance with ADRIA Bylaw 
8.4, including recourse to binding arbitration.  Throughout, the guiding 
principles described within this policy will apply. 


 Members are obligated to comply with the Society’s complaint resolution 
bylaws, policies and procedures as a condition of membership. The 
failure of a member to cooperate with ADRIA or ADRIC complaint, 
dispute resolution and/or discipline processes shall be considered an act 
of professional misconduct, and may result in disciplinary procedures. 
 


 


Guiding Principles: 
  


 ADR First:  The skills and resources of ADRIA will be used to address and 
resolve complaints in a manner that is interest-based, understanding-based, 
facilitative, collaborative and fully participative whenever possible.  


 Personal Responsibility and Engagement:  All parties to a complaint will actively 
participate, and strive to achieve a collaborative resolution and outcome at the 
earliest possible stage of the process. 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/





 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 2 of 12 
 


 Confidentiality:  Information about a complaint will only be given to parties 
directly involved and to others on a need to know basis. 


 Timeliness:  Complaints will be dealt with promptly and resolved as quickly as 
possible.  


 Fairness: Review of complaints will be fair, impartial and respectful, allowing all 
parties to have their perspectives heard.  


 Thoroughness:  Review of complaints will be thorough and as detailed as 
possible, based upon the information provided by the parties. 


 Accessible and User-Friendly:  The process will be easily accessible and 
communicated to members.  It is designed to be clear and as simple to follow 
as possible. 


 Transparency:  The parties will be provided clear and understandable reasons 
for decisions relating to complaints. All parties will be provided with updates 
during review processes.   


 


Definitions: 
 
Complaint means a complaint against a member alleging: 


 


(a) misconduct in relation to dispute resolution work by the member, 


specifically involving a member’s act or omission in the course of 


rendering services as a dispute resolution practitioner, as that 


term and profession are recognized in Canada, including but not 


limited to: “arbitrator”, “mediator” and “investigator"; 


 


(b) inappropriate conduct in relation to operational activities including 


programs, policies, services, staff, contractors, volunteers or 


governance of the Institute; 


  


(c) breach of the Institute’s Code of Ethics, Articles, Bylaws, 


Regulations, or Board policies.  


For ease of reference, all manner of concerns, disputes and/or complaints brought 
to the attention of ADRIA staff or Board members, formally or informally, shall be 
referred to as a complaint within this policy. 
 
The ADRIA Complaint Resolution Process is a progressive effort to resolve a 
complaint in a confidential, timely fashion at the lowest practical level.  The 
emphasis throughout this process is on personal responsibility, engagement, and 
constructive dialogue wherever possible.  There are three (3) progressive options 
in the complaint resolution process:  Informal, Assisted, and Written(Formal). 
 
A Complainant is the individual lodging a complaint against another individual, 
policy or practice within ADRIA’s jurisdiction.   







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 3 of 12 
 


 
A Respondent is an individual against whom a complaint has been made, and/or 
someone responsible for the policy or activity complained about. 
 
A Registrar is an individual who has been appointed by the Board to act as an 
intermediary, convening authority, facilitator and/or mediator in the complaint 
resolution process, and to work with the parties to achieve a satisfactory outcome.  
The Board may appoint one or more Registrars, the appointments of which may be 
from the Board, the staff, or the general membership based on experience, 
personal reputation and neutrality.  
 
The Board refers to the ADRIA Board of Directors, as elected by the membership. 
 
Society refers to the ADR Institute of Alberta, a society registered under the 
Societies Act of Alberta. 
 
A Policy is any policy that has been approved by the ADRIA Board of Directors.  
Anything else should be referred to as a practice.   
 
ADRIA staff refers to employees and contractors directly employed or engaged by 
ADRIA to deliver core functions.   
 
Discipline refers to the corrective action taken in respect to an individual when a 
complaint is upheld and found to have substance, or agreed to as a consequence 
of a negotiated or mediated outcome.  Disciplinary measures are normally 
considered confidential, and the details are usually not shared with other parties to 
the conflict, except when considered necessary to advise other Regional Affiliates 
or safeguard the public. 
 
A Hearing Committee is a review body of 1-3 members convened by the Board to 
review, investigate, and decide the complaint. 


 
Referrals: 
 
Matters that cannot be resolved by the ADRIA complaint resolution process, or are 
referred to ADRIC by the ADRIA Board of Directors, may be handled by means of 
the ADRIC’s Discipline Procedure: www.adrcanada.ca/rules/complaints.cfm  
 
Complaint resolution processes initiated by one Regional Affiliate of ADRUIC may 
be referred to another if the respondent’s membership changes provinces. 


 
Documenting Complaints: 
  
A record will be kept of any Written/Formal complaint under this process. 
Information about such complaints will include the parties involved, a description of 
the complaint, who handled it, what was done to resolve the complaint, the 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/rules/complaints.cfm





 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 4 of 12 
 


timeframe, and a description of the resolution or an explanation for non-resolution. 
These records will be maintained by the Executive Director in a confidential file. 
 
A summary of complaints, including total number of formal complaints and the 
nature of complaints received, will be prepared by the Executive Director and 
reported to the Board of Directors regularly. 
 


Responsibility for Implementation: 
 
This policy respects the accountability framework of ADRIA which provides that: 


 Operational and Educational activities are the responsibility of the Executive 
Director; and 


 matters relating to Board policy, activities, decisions and governance are the 
responsibility of the Board of Directors. 


 
Legal Counsel & Accompanying Parties: 
 
While most ADRIA complaint resolution processes do not require the parties to be 
accompanied by or have legal representation, the following provisions do apply: 


 The complainant or respondent may be accompanied by a support person 
or represented by legal counsel, but are individually responsible for all 
expenses incurred on their behalf.   


 Where a complainant or respondent is to be accompanied by a support 
person or represented by legal counsel, notification is to be provided to the 
Registrar and/or the Hearing Committee five (5) working days prior to the 
meeting or hearing date. 


 Final approval for the presence of other parties or representatives, aside 
from legal counsel, shall be at the discretion of the Registrar or Hearing 
Committee. 


 The Registrar or Hearing Committee may utilize ADRIA staff in presenting 
information or in an advisory capacity, or may also retain legal counsel. 


 


Documentation & Witnesses: 
 
The Registrar may request, and a Hearing Committee may require the production 
of documents from any member. 
 
Complainants and Respondents are responsible for ensuring the attendance of 
witnesses they or their council intend to call to give evidence at a hearing.  Any 
expenses incurred will only be reimbursed by ADRIA in exceptional circumstances, 
and only with express approval of the Hearing Committee, preferably in advance. 
 
All witnesses giving evidence may be cross-examined on issues relevant to the 
complaint.  Witnesses other than the Complainant and Respondent shall be 
excluded from the Hearing unless the Hearing Committee otherwise orders. 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 5 of 12 
 


ANNEX A: 


 
ADRIA’s Progressive Complaint Resolution Process Options: 
 
(A) Informal 
 
An informal complaint resolution effort is characterized by an individual’s personal 
efforts to seek information and express their concern(s) without recourse to a 
formal or written complaint.  Early, Local and Informal (ELI) engagement is the best 
approach to most conflict situations, as it is important to ensure that the 
respondent, or the responsible person, is made aware of the concern and be 
allowed the first opportunity to offer an explanation or remedy.  When appropriate, 
or in preparation, the complainant could also speak with any person who is most 
familiar with or responsible for the matter of concern.  Such expectations are often 
incorporated into contracts signed by ADRIA members with their client(s), and any 
Complainant's first recourse should usually be in accordance with their contractual 
undertaking.  Informal resolutions are thus often achieved without recourse to, or 
without the knowledge of any ADRIA staff or Board member. 
 
The first person a complainant should talk to is the person with whom he or she 
has the conflict, or is responsible for the activity (the respondent).  If the 
complainant is unable to resolve the matter with the respondent, and/or is unsure 
about who to talk to, he or she is encouraged to consult with an ADRIA staff 
member or the Executive Director.  He or she may be able to assist the 
complainant in directing the concern towards a satisfactory outcome. 
 
Complaints regarding the Ethics, Conduct, or Professionalism of ADRIA 
members in their practice should first be addressed with the member directly.  
Both complainant and respondent are encouraged to refer to this policy and its 
guiding principles as they work together to achieve a resolution. 
 
Complaints about practices pertaining to Professional Development & 
Educational activities, Equivalencies, Membership, or Designations will 
initially be dealt with by the Executive Director or staff member responsible for this 
activity. 
 
If approached with an informal complaint, the ED will usually inquire about any 
initial resolution efforts, and will consult as appropriate with ADRIA staff to assist. 
Every attempt should be made by the complainant to resolve a matter informally 
within the first two (2) weeks after the concern is first voiced.  To this end, direct 
dialogue and negotiation between the parties involved is strongly encouraged.  
 


 
 
 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 6 of 12 
 


(B) Assisted 
 
If the informal approach does not resolve the matter to the satisfaction of the 
complainant, the complainant can refer their complaint, verbally or by e-mail to 
the ADRIA Responsible Contact (see table below).  This might be the first occasion 
that an ADRIA staff or Board member becomes aware of the complaint. 
 
This step in the Complaint Resolution Process is NOT characterized by a formal, 
written complaint, but instead by a genuine interest in further ADR resolution efforts 
to address issues that have not been resolved though initial, informal efforts.  The 
premature submission of a written formal complaint and supporting documentation 
does NOT, by definition, escalate the complaint to the status of a Formal 
complaint, unless such action is requested, or is considered in the best interests of 
the Society. 
 
The ADRIA Responsible Contact will maintain a personal record of any complaint 
received, including established facts and details of all informal efforts made by the 
complainant to achieve an early resolution.  Whenever practical, complainants will 
be encouraged to pursue their informal options, and be assisted as appropriate. 
 


Subject/Type of Complaint ADRIA Responsible Contact 
Complaints regarding ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of an ADRIA member 


Executive Director 


Complaints regarding ADRIA services, 
programs, activities, operations, education & 
professional development activities, contractors 
or volunteers 


ADRIA Staff – the staff member 
responsible for the service area relating to 
the complaint or, if necessary, the Executive 
Director. 


Complaints regarding ADRIA staff members Executive Director 


Disputes between ADRIA staff members Executive Director (other policies apply) 


Complaints concerning the Executive Director Board Officer – Vice-President 


Complaints regarding Board Policies, Board 
actions/decisions and governance of the Society 


Board Officer –Vice-President 


Matters related to Board/staff relations Board Officer  - Vice-President (or 
President if the concern relates to the VP) 


Complaints concerning a Board Member Board Officer – Vice President (or 
President if the concern relates to the VP) 


 


Complaints raised in this manner will be addressed in a timely fashion by the 
ADRIA Responsible Contact, and a response can be expected within two (2) 
weeks.  Specific facilitation processes or outcomes are not defined, except to note 
that they must strive to achieve resolution from the perspective of the complainant 
and any other parties engaged.  Facilitation, mediation, or arbitration options may 
be offered, although arbitration is not an option for complaints regarding member 
Code of Conduct or Ethical breaches.   Upon conclusion, the Responsible Contact 
will summarize the outcome and conclusions in an e-mail or letter to the 
complainant and other parties as appropriate. 


 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 7 of 12 
 


(C) Written/Formal 
 
If early resolution efforts do not achieve an acceptable outcome in a timely fashion, 
or to the satisfaction of the complainant, a written formal complaint may be 
appropriate.   The submission of a written complaint, however, is NOT a 
mechanism to simply bypass the informal options favoured in this policy.  The 
complainant will always be asked to detail all prior efforts to achieve a resolution, 
and informal resolution options may be still recommended if deemed appropriate. 
 
A formal complaint is characterized by a written submission, including a clear 
statement of the complaint, resolution efforts to date, and the outcome(s) desired.  
Where there are allegations of professional misconduct, specific reference must be 
made to relevant passages of ADRIC’s Code of Ethics and/or Code of Conduct for 
Mediators http://www.adrcanada.ca/index.cfm .  The Respondent and ADRIA 
Responsible Contact must be clearly identified.  Written complaints are usually 
accompanied by supporting documentation, and may be submitted to: 
 


 The ADRIA Executive Director for all operational and professional 
development issues, and for any complaint regarding the ethics, conduct or 
professionalism of an ADRIA member;  


 The Vice President of the Board for any issue pertaining to Board policies 
or conduct of the Society; or 


 The President of the Board (only in rare circumstances). 
 
 
Initial Process for Review of a Written Formal Complaint 
 
Any written formal complaint will first be referred to the Registrar who will review 
the complaint to ensure that: 
 


(a) It concerns a current Member of the Institute; 
 


(b) On its face, the complaint meets the definition of a complaint as 
defined in this policy; 
 


(c) It is in writing, and: 
 


(i) is received from a direct participant in a dispute resolution 
process conducted by the member, or by a person authorized 
in writing on the complainant’s behalf; or 
 


(ii) is received from a person who appears to have direct 
knowledge of a Member’s non-compliance with the Institute’s 
Code of Ethics or Code of Conduct for Mediators or 
 



http://www.adrcanada.ca/index.cfm





 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 8 of 12 
 


(iii) has been commenced by motion of the Board, which may of 
its own motion initiate a complaint; 


 
(d) It contains sufficient details and particulars to enable a response; 


 
(e) In the instance of a dispute resolution process, the respondent has 


completed the dispute resolution mandate (or matter or action) or the 
mandate (or matter or action) has been terminated by the parties.  


 


The Registrar will inform the complainant that the Institute’s complaint resolution 


process:    


 


(a) is set out in this policy, a copy of which shall be provided to the 


complainant; 


 


(b) is a discernment process (defined as the activity of obtaining sharp 


perceptions and/or to judge well); 


 
(c) may involve Informal, assisted or formal resolution options as set out in 


this policy; 
 


(d) is not a substitute for an appeal, judicial review or other court action in 
relation to any dispute resolution process undertaken by the respondent 
for the complainant; 
 


(e) cannot change the outcome of any dispute resolution process 
undertaken by the respondent for the complainant or result in an order 
for a new dispute resolution process; 
 


(f) cannot result in an award of damages or compensation to the complaint, 
respondent  or anyone else; 
 


(g) may result in disciplinary measures against the respondent. 
 


 


Process for Handling of Written/Formal Complaints 


 


Notice to Respondent  (Offer of Informal Dispute Resolution))  
 


When the appointed Registrar is satisfied the requirements outlined above are met, 
and has determined that disclosure will not jeopardize the potential for an Informal 
Dispute Resolution process, the Registrar will send to the respondent: 


 
(a) a copy of the complaint; 


 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 9 of 12 
 


(b) any supporting materials; 
 


(c) a copy of this policy;  
 


(d) a request for a response within 30 days; 
 


(e) an offer to provide Informal Dispute Resolution (if appropriate). 
 


If there is no response within 30 days, the complaint will be sent to the ADRIA 
President to initiate Formal Dispute Resolution. 
 
Initial Response to the Complainant (Offer of Informal Dispute Resolution) 
 
Upon receipt of a timely response, the Registrar will send to the complainant: 


 
(a) a copy of the response; 


 
(b) any supporting materials; 


 


(c) an offer to provide Informal Dispute Resolution. 
 


If both parties accept the offer of Informal Dispute Resolution, the Registrar will 
facilitate the Informal Dispute Resolution process, which may include such options 
as informal meetings, negotiation, facilitated meetings or mediation.  In 
consultation with the Executive Director and/or President, he Registrar may 
engage other ADR Professionals in this process if confidentiality is assured.    


 


If both parties do not accept the offer of Informal Dispute Resolution, or if Informal 
Dispute Resolution does not resolve the complaint, the Registrar will forward the 
complaint and the response, if any, to the President to initiate Formal Dispute 
Resolution. 


 


Any agreed resolution of the complaint arrived at through Informal Dispute 
Resolution shall be confidential, although the parties must determine what 
elements, if any, need to be shared or conveyed to the Registrar, Staff, Board, 
legal counsel and/or other parties.  These considerations should include:  Is the 
agreement realistic and durable?  Does the agreement in any way compromise 
ADRIA or the profession?  Are there elements of the agreement that impact on 
ADRIA operations, policies, reputation, external relationships or public 
perceptions?   


 


Formal Dispute Resolution (Hearing Committee)    
 
When a complaint is sent to the President for Formal Dispute Resolution under any 
of the circumstances outlined in this policy, the President will appoint an ad hoc 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 10 of 12 
 


committee (the “Hearing Committee”) to review, investigate, and decide the 
complaint. The Hearing Committee may consist of either:  


 
(a) One Board member acting as a single member Hearing Committee; or 


 
(b) A three person Hearing Committee to be chaired by a Board member 


and to include two other Members who may or may not be Board 
members. 


 
The Hearing Committee will determine the procedure for the review and 
investigation of the Complaint and will ensure that each party is provided a fair 
opportunity, in writing or otherwise, to present their case.  


 
The Hearing Committee will act as expeditiously as possible in carrying out the 
following steps: 


 
(a) Receive and review the complaint and the response, if any; 
 
(b) Review any additional materials received; 
 
(c) Seek additional information, if needed, from the complainant, the 


respondent, the Institute, or any other source the Hearing Committee 
deems appropriate;  


 
(d) Assess the complaint;  
 
(e) Prepare a written decision including: 
 


i. A description of the process the Hearing Committee followed; 
 


ii. A summary of the information considered by the Hearing 
Committee; 


 


iii. A finding as to whether the Complaint has been substantiated 
in whole or in part; 


 
iv. Reasons for the Hearing Committee’s conclusions; 


 
v. If the complaint is substantiated in whole or in part, directions 


as to the appropriate remedial action to be taken in the 
circumstances. The Hearing Committee may choose from a 
wide range of remedial options, including but not limited to 
remediation, a simple warning, training, review, mentoring, 
observation or temporary or permanent removal from the 
Institute’s membership list.  Recommendations can also be 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 11 of 12 
 


made to ADRIC, if endorsed by the Board, regarding the 
respondent’s ADRIC membership and national designations.  


 
(f) Deliver the Hearing Committee’s decision to the President with a copy to 


the complainant and the respondent, explicitly on a confidential basis. 
 
If no party commences an appeal under section 6 of this Policy, the decision of the 
Hearing Committee is considered final.  The President will report the Hearing 
Committee decision to the next meeting of the Board, and the Hearing Committee 
decision will be implemented. 
 
Appeal Process 


 
The complainant and the respondent have the right to appeal the Hearing 
Committee decision to the Board.  


 
Any appeal must be launched by a Request for Appeal in writing delivered to the 
Registrar within 30 days of the date the Hearing Committee decision was delivered 
to the parties.  


 


The Request for Appeal shall include a statement of the grounds for the appeal. 
 


Upon receipt of a Request for Appeal, the Registrar will inform the other party and 
the Board of the request for appeal. 


 
The Board will consider the Request for Appeal at its next regular meeting or, at 
the discretion of the Board, at a special meeting set by the Board. 


 
The Board will determine the procedure for each appeal and will ensure that each 
party is provided a fair opportunity, in writing or otherwise, to present their case.  


 


Any Board member who has participated as a member of a Hearing Committee 
may not participate in the appeal in any way.  


 
The Board will render its decision, with reasons, to the parties in a timely manner. 


 
The Board’s decision on appeal shall be final and the decision will be implemented 
immediately. 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


ADRIA Interim Complaint Resolution Policy v3.2 April 2015 Page 12 of 12 
 


Annex B:  
 
ADRIA Bylaw Provision 8.4 


8.4  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


1.   This Section applies to any dispute arising out of the Society's affairs or the 
application of these bylaws. 
2.  A dispute may be between:  


a. members, or   
b. the Society and its Directors or its Officers, or  
c. the Society or its Directors or its Officers and either  


 i. a member, or  
 ii. a former member who was a member within the previous 6 
months.  


3.  Any dispute subject to Subsection 1 and 2 will be resolved by:   
a. Direct negotiation between the parties, with or without assistance 
and/or facilitation. If resolution is not achieved, then by:  
b. Mediation pursuant to the National Mediation Rules of ADRIC, or to 
mediation practices agreed upon by the parties. The language of the 
mediation will be English. If resolution is not achieved, then by:  
c. Arbitration pursuant to the National Arbitration Rules of ADRIC, or to 
arbitration practices agreed upon by the parties. The language of the 
arbitration will be English, and the decision will bind all parties.  


4.  Members are obligated to comply with the Society’s complaint resolution 
bylaws, policies and procedures as a condition of membership. The failure 
of a member to cooperate with ADRIA or ADRIC complaint, dispute 
resolution and/or discipline processes shall be considered an act of 
professional misconduct, and may result in disciplinary procedures. 


 





